

2018-2019

STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

Lisa Noel Babbage, *Dean* 6175 Lawrenceville Highway Tucker, Georgia 30084 (770) JAGUARS Leadership

Dr. Beverly Ferguson, *Lower School* Jennifer Richards, *Lower School* Ericka Terrell, *Early Learning Center* Erica Sterling, *Upper School* Megan Rogers Burns, *Upper School*

July 23 - 25, 2018	Pre-planning Days (Professional Development- Instructional Clinic)
August 27- 29, 2018	Open House II
September 3, 2016	Labor Day (all personnel out)
September 4, 2018	Classes Begin for Students
October 24, 2018	End of 1 st Grading Period Teacher Work Session
November 12, 2018	Veterans' Day
November 21-23, 2016	Thanksgiving Holidays (all personnel out)
December 19, 2018	End of the 2 nd Grading Period End of the 1 st Semester
December 24, 2018- January 2, 2019	Christmas & New Year's Holidays (all personnel out)
January 3, 2019 January 4, 2019	Teacher Work Day (students out) Professional Development Day for Teachers (students out)
January 7, 2019	Students Return for 2 nd Semester
January 18, 2019	Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
February 20, 2019	Presidents' Day
February 27, 2019	End of 3 rd Grading Period Teacher Work Session
April 15-16, 2019 April 17-24, 2019	Teacher Work Day (students out) Spring Break (all personnel out)
May 27, 2019	Memorial Day (all personnel out)
June 14, 2019	End of 4 th Grading Period End of 2 nd Semester Last Day for School

Table of Contents

SCHOOL CALENDAR 2018-2019

DEAN'S	6 LETTE	R TO PARENTS	1
80400			
SCHUC		ITS & RESPONSIBILITIES	2
		ON AND VISION	3
	1.0	Code of Conduct	3
	1.1	School Responsibilities	3
	1.2	Control of Students	3
	1.3	Teacher Rights & Responsibilities	3
	1.4	Civility in Schools	3
	1.5	Notification of Rights Under Health Information Protection of Privacy Act (HIPPA)	4
	1.6	Student Information & Records	4
	1.7	Search and Seizure by School Personnel	4
	1.8	Interviewing of Students	5
	1.9	Positive Behavior Support (PBS)	5
PAREN	T & GU	ARDIAN RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES	5
	2.0	Parent & Guardian Rights	5
	2.1	Parent & Guardian Responsibilities	5
	2.2	Residency	6
	2.3	Submission of Fraudulent Documentation	6
	2.4	Notification of Rights Under Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)	6
STUDE	NT RUL	ES	7
	3.0	Student Rules of Conduct	7
	3.1	Expectations	7
	3.2	Student Responsibilities	7
	3.3	Student Rights	7
	3.4	Eligibility Standards for Interscholastic Extracurricular Activities	7
	3.5	Due Process for Non-Disabled Students	8
	3.6	Discrimination/Sexual Harassment	8
	3.7	Attendance	9
	3.8	Check-Out of Students During Severe Weather Conditions	10
	3.9	Dress and Grooming	10
	3.10	Review of Student Records	11
	3.11	Medications	12
	3.12	Trespassing	12
	3.13	Possession	12
	3.14	Dangerous Items	12
	3.15	Wireless Communication	12
	3.17	Bus Rules of Conduct	13
	3.18	Parking on School Facilities	14
	3.19	Instructional Technology Acceptable Use Policy	14
	3.20	Internet & Technology Acceptable Use Policy (AUP) for KPA Network & Internet	
	3.20	Inappropriate Internet Uses of the KPA Network, Internet, & KPA Computers	15
	3.22	Internet Safety	13
	3.22	Penalties for Improper Use	17
	3.23	Network Etiquette (Netiquette) for E-mail	18
	3.24	Cyber-Bullying-Cyber Stalking	18
	3.26	Prohibited Uses	18
	3.20	Electronic Communication	18
	J /		10

3.27 Electronic Communication

STUDENTS V	VITH DISABILITIES	
4.0	Discipline Procedures for Students with Disabilities	19
4.1	Student Records in Disciplinary Procedures	20
4.2	Reporting of Crimes Committed by SWD	21
4.3	Suspension and Expulsion Rates	21
4.4	Procedural Safeguards and Due Process Procedures	21
4.5	Section 504 Plan Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973	21
4.6	Procedural Safeguards, Grievance Procedures, and Hearing	21
4.7	Mediation Request	21
4.8	Grievance	21
4.9	Due Process Hearing	21
4.10	Discipline Under Section 504	22
4.11	Manifestation Determination	22
4.12	Substance Use/Possession Offenses	22
4.13	Interim Alternative Educational Setting	23
4.14	Notice of Parent/Guardian/Student Rights Afforded by Section 504	23
INFRACTION	S & CONSEQUENCES	25
5.0	Minor Infractions Requiring Informal Consequences	26
5.1	Informal Consequences	26
5.3	Major Infractions Requiring Formal Consequences	29
5.4	Off Campus Incidents	30
5.5	Suspension/Expulsion	30
5.6	Bullying, Harassment, or Teen Dating Violence	31
5.6.1	Bullying	31
5.6.2	Harassment	31
5.6.3	Teen Dating Violence	32
5.7	Hazing	33
5.8	Tobacco Products	33
5.9	Vandalism	33
		0.4
	ANCE & CONQUENCES	34
6.0	Offences Requiring Severe Consequences 6.1 Firearm Simulation	34
35		
6.2	Victimizing	35
6.3	Safe Harbor Provisions	35
SCHOOL FOR	RMS	36
Notice	e of Receipt and Understanding of the Code of Conduct*	38
Paren	t/Guardian Receipt and Understanding of Code of Conduct*	40
Staff/S	Student Acceptable Use Policy Agreement*	42
Paren	t/Guardian Acceptable Use Agreement*	44
Stude	nt Technology Opt-out Form	46
	A Notice*	48
	ession of Wireless Communication Devices*	50
Bullyi	ng/Harassment Complaint Form	52

CONTACTS & INFORMATION

*Forms to be completed and returned to school



Lisa Noel Babbage, *Dean* 6175 Lawrenceville Highway Tucker, Georgia 30084 (770) JAGUARS Leadership

Dr. Beverly Ferguson, *Lower School* Jennifer Richards, *Lower School* Ericka Terrell, *Early Learning Center* Erica Sterling, *Upper School* Megan Rogers Burns, *Upper School*

Dear Parents/Guardians and Student:

King's Preparatory Academy is committed to ensuring our school offers a safe and secure environment, thus enabling us to provide the best possible opportunity for our students to learn and excel. The Code of Student Conduct (Code) is prepared and disseminated to all students, parents and/or guardians to ensure school and PTSO goals are achieved.

School administrators and teachers will be reviewing the Code along with the school's student handbook to bring attention to the established rules, guidelines and consequences for unacceptable behavior. The Code addresses expectations for students related to attendance, respect for persons and property, appropriate dress, technology usage, student records and the right to appeal, including grievance procedures. Parents and guardians, I encourage you to read this document and discuss expectations for your children to follow the rules and make good choices when faced with pressure from their peers. It is the responsibility of school personnel to be aware of the specifics of the Code and to apply them appropriately. It is the responsibility of students and parents/guardians to know the rules of the Code and to support the fair and impartial administration of these policies.

We take great pride in the accomplishments of our students and realize these positive outcomes are the result of the joint efforts of students, parents, guardians, teachers, administrators, support staff and the community. With our continued team effort, 2018-2019 will be another successful year for all. I invite you to join us in ensuring another year of documented success.

Sincerely,

Dean of Schools

NOTICE OF RECEIPT: After reading and discussing this Code with your child, please acknowledge your understanding and receipt by signing the required pages in the back and returning them to your child's school.

This publication is developed to assist parents, guardians and students to understand their rights and responsibilities as King's Preparatory Academy strive to maintain a safe and orderly educational environment.

King's Preparatory Academy does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, ethnicity, national origin, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, political or religious beliefs, genetic information or any other basis prohibited by law in its educational programs, services or activities or in its hiring or employment practices. Retaliation against an employee for engaging in a protected activity is prohibited.

RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

KING'S PREPARATORY ACADEMY (KPA)

MISSION & VISION

The Mission of King's Preparatory Academy is to prepare students for a life of faith and leadership.

The Vision of King's Preparatory Academy is to create a model for Judeo-Christian education.

1.0 CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct outlines the key rights, responsibilities and requirements for students and parents/guardians in our schools. Additional information may be found in the student handbook sent out by your school. This Code of Conduct applies to all students in the . It applies to activities at school, on School Board buses or other school property, on field trips, at athletic events and at other school sponsored activities. State law and policy also provide for discipline for certain serious offenses (felonies or felonies if committed by an adult) by students that occur off campus, at school bus stops or after school hours.

1.1 SCHOOL RESPONSIBILITIES

It is the responsibility of the school and each school to:

- a) provide high quality instruction for all students;
- b) provide and maintain a safe atmosphere that encourages good behavior and learning for all students. Many schools use the Positive Behavior Support (PBS) approach in all settings.
- c) teach students to respect themselves and others by treating them fairly, with dignity and respect by implementing PBS to establish a predictable, consistent and positive school culture.
- d) provide in-service courses in communications to further improve the working relationships among the staff and with the students, parents, guardians, and community;
- e) provide courses of study, programs, and activities and materials to meet the academic and social needs of all students;
- f) involve parents/guardians in selecting strategies for reaching academic or behavioral goals; and,
- g) inform parents/guardians of the availability of homebound instruction when the school suspects or knows that a student will be absent for at least fifteen (15) or more school days for health reasons.

1.2 CONTROL OF STUDENTS

Subject to law and rules of the State Board of Education and of the King's Preparatory Academy (KPA), each student enrolled in a school shall be under the control and direction of the principal or teacher in charge of the school, and under the immediate control and direction of the teacher or other member of the instructional staff or of the bus driver to whom such responsibility may be assigned by the principal:

- (a) During the time she or he is being transported to or from school at public expense;
- (b) During the time she or he is attending school;
- (c) During the time she or he is on the school premises participating with authorization in a school-sponsored activity; and
- (d) During a reasonable time before and after the student is on the premises for attendance at school or for authorized participation in a school-sponsored activity, and only when on the premises.

1.3 TEACHERS' RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES

Teachers and other instructional personnel shall have the authority to undertake any of the following actions in managing student behavior ensuring the safety of all students.

- 1. Establish classroom rules of conduct and implement consequences designed to change behavior for infractions of classroom rules.
- 2. Have disobedient, disrespectful, violent, abusive, uncontrollable, or disruptive students temporarily removed from the classroom for behavior management intervention.
- 3. Assist in enforcing school rules on school property, on school-sponsored transportation, and during school-sponsored activities.
- Press charges if a crime has been committed against the teacher or other instructional personnel on school property, on schoolsponsored transportation, or during schoolsponsored activities.
- Use reasonable force, such as CPI, according to standards recommended by the Education Standards Commission and the Education Practices Commission and adopted by the State Board of Education, to protect him/herself or others from injury.

1.4 CIVILITY IN SCHOOLS

Members of the KPA's staff will treat parents, guardians and other members of the public with respect and expect the same in return. Staff will take all necessary action to protect the safety and welfare of students and employees. Disruptions, threats, offensive language, unauthorized entry or willful property damage will be grounds for removal from School Board property by staff or a law enforcement officer.

1.5 NOTIFICATION OF RIGHTS UNDER HIPPA

KPA Duties – KPA is required by law to maintain the privacy of protected health information that belongs to your child enrolled in Georgia Schools. This Notice of Privacy Practices tells you how your child's protected health information may be used and how KPA keeps your information private and confidential. This notice explains the legal duties and practices relating to your child's protected health information. As part of KPA's legal duties, this Notice of Privacy Practices must be given to you. KPA is required to follow the terms of the Notice of Privacy Practices currently in effect.

Uses and Disclosures of Your Protected Health Information - Protected health information includes demographic and medical information that concerns the past, present, or future physical or mental health of an individual. Demographic information could include your name, address, telephone number, social security number and any other means of identifying you as a specific person. Protected health information contains specific information that identifies a person or can be used to identify a person. Protected health information is health information created or received by a health care provider, health plan, employer, or health care clearinghouse. This medical information is used in many ways while performing normal business activities.

Your child's protected health information may be used or disclosed by KPA for purposes of treatment, payment, and health care operations. Health care professionals use medical information in the clinics or hospitals that take care of your child. Your child's protected health information may be shared, with or without your consent, with another health care provider for purposes of his/her treatment. KPA may use or disclose your child's health information for case management and services (such as ESE services). KPA may send the medical information to insurance companies, Medicaid, or community agencies to pay for the services provided to your child.

Your child's information may be used by certain KPA personnel to improve the operations of KPA's health care components. Personnel may send your child appointment reminders, information about treatment options or other health related benefits and services. Some protected health information can

be disclosed without your written authorization as allowed by law.

Those circumstances include:

- a) Reporting abuse of children, adults, or disabled persons.
- b) Investigations related to a missing child.
- c) Internal investigations and audits by KPA's divisions, bureaus and offices. Investigations and audits by the state's Inspector General and protected health information.

This summary does not include:

- a) Disclosures made to you.
- b) Disclosures to individuals involved with your care.
- c) Disclosures authorized to you.
- d) Disclosures made to carry out treatment, payment, and health care operations.
- e) Disclosures for public health.
- f) Disclosures to health professional regulatory purposes.
- g) Disclosures to report abuse of children, adults, or disabled.
- h) Disclosures prior to April 14, 2003.

This summary does include:

- a) Purposes of research, other than you authorized in writing.
- b) Responses to court orders, subpoenas, or warrants.

You may request a summary of disclosures for not more than a 6-year period from the date of your request.

1.6 STUDENT INFORMATION & RECORDS

Confidentiality of student records shall be maintained in accordance with FERPA. The school or shall provide information related to student achievement, behavior, and attendance history on juvenile offenders or juveniles at risk of becoming offenders for the purpose of assessment or treatment under the terms and conditions set forth in School Board approved interagency agreements.

1.7 SEARCH AND SEIZURE BY SCHOOL PERSONNEL

The School administrators are authorized to conduct searches in the presence of another witness when he or she has reasonable suspicion that prohibited, stolen or illegal items are possessed or stored by the student and threatens the health, safety or welfare of another person. While protecting the right of students to be free from unreasonable search, school officials may conduct a search of a person, bags, purses, boxes, clothing, articles, lockers, motor vehicles, or seized electronic devices. Metal detectors or law enforcement trained narcotics detection dogs may also be used under certain conditions. Administrators have the authority to remove students from the area(s) that are being searched.

1.8 INTERVIEWING OF STUDENTS

The KPA policy establishes guidelines for interviewing students by law enforcement agencies. By this notice, the policy will also serve as the guidelines used for interviews conducted by the Department of Children and Family Services (DCFS) with the exception of parent/guardian notification when that agency is investigating abuse/neglect complaints. The DCFS' employees will conduct all interviews with students in accordance with Georgia Statutes.

1.9 POSTIVE BEHAVIOR SUPPORT (PBS)

PBS is a research-based, highly effective approach to creating, teaching and reinforcing students' social, emotional and academic learning skills that improves and sustains academic achievement and mental and emotional well-being.

2.0 PARENT/GUARDIAN RIGHTS

Parents and Guardians are afforded numerous statutory rights including:

- a) the entitlement to a high quality education for their child through a uniform, safe, secure, efficient and high quality system;
- b) the opportunity to request and be granted permission for the absence of the student from school for religious instruction or religious holidays of the specific faith of the student;
- c) the opportunity to request exemptions related to certain health issues, including school entry health exams, immunizations, participation in biological experiments, reproductive health and disease education and contraceptive services, if offered by the school;
- d) timely notification of any verified substance abuse violation by the student;
- e) a good faith effort by the school to notify the parent/guardian by telephone of the student's suspension, the reason and a report in writing within 24 hours by U.S. mail;
- f) a written notification of a recommended expulsion including the charges against the student and a statement of the right of due process;
- g) victims and siblings of certain felony offenses by other students kept separate

from the student offender both at school and during school transportation;

- h) access to all educational programs, activities and opportunities offered by the without discrimination on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin, sexual orientation, gender, disability or marital status;
- notice and due process for parents/guardians of public school students with disabilities including an Individualized Educational Plan (IEP);
- j) receipt of English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) instruction and parental/guardian involvement for limited English proficient students;
- k) a written request to excuse a student from reciting the Pledge of Allegiance;
- access, waiver of access, challenge and hearing and privacy regarding student records of their children;
- m) an easy to read report card on a regular basis that clearly depicts and grades the student's academic performance in each class or course, the student's conduct and the student's attendance;
- n) an appraisal at regular intervals of the academic progress and other needed information about their child; and
- o) notification in writing requiring written consent before a student may be transported in a privately owned vehicle to a school function.

2.1 PARENTS AND GUARDIANS CAN HELP THEIR CHILDREN WITH PROPER DISCIPLINE IN SCHOOL BY MEETING THE FOLLOWING RESPONSIBILITIES:

- a) encouraging respect for the authority of teachers, principals, and other school staff members;
- b) showing interest in their child's school progress;
- c) working with school personnel to solve disciplinary and academic problems;
- d) getting to know their child's school, staff, programs, and activities;
- e) attending parent/guardian-teacher conferences and school/parent/guardian functions, such as PTSO and/or School Advisory Committee meetings, and volunteering to help in the classroom;
- f) teaching their child to be clean, well groomed, and wear clothes which are appropriate for school;

- g) making sure their child gets to school on time, every day unless their child is ill or has a contagious disease;
- keeping up-to-date information at the school, including home, work, and emergency telephone numbers, addresses and health data;
- i) contacting the school to explain why their child is absent; and
- teaching their child by word and example respect for law, the authority of the school, and
- k) the rights and property of others.

2.2 RESIDENCY

It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to provide proper and accurate documentation to the school to prove residency. The school shall have the right to verify any information that is provided.

KPA has an established enrollment period for students to apply for acceptance.

2.4 NOTIFICATION OF RIGHTS UNDER FERPA

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents/guardians and students over 18 years of age ("eligible students") certain rights with respect to the student's education records.

Parents/guardians and eligible students have:

The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 45 days of the day the school receives a request for access. Parents/guardians or eligible students should submit to the school principal (or appropriate school official) a written or electronic request that identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The school officials will make arrangements for access and notify the parent/guardian or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.

The right to request the amendment of the student's education records that the parent/guardian or eligible student believes are inaccurate. Parents/guardians or eligible students may ask the school to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate. They should write the school principal (or appropriate school official), clearly identify the part of the record they want changed and specify why it is inaccurate.

<u>The right to consent to disclosures</u> of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent. One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with

legitimate educational interests. A school official is a person employed by the school as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a person serving on the School Board; a person or company with whom the school has contracted to perform a special task (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent/guardian or student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks.

The right to request a restriction on access to directory information for a student by making a written request to the school principal at any time. "Directory information" includes the student's name, address, telephone number if it is a listed number, date and place of birth, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height of members of athletic teams, dates of attendance, degrees and awards received, and the most recent previous educational agency or institution attended by the student

<u>The right to file a complaint</u> with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by King's Preparatory Academy to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office 400 Maryland Avenue, SW U.S. Department of Education Washington, D.C. 20202-4605

If you believe your privacy rights or health rights have been violated, you may file a complaint with the KPA by contacting the **Dean of Schools**.

3.0 STUDENT RULES OF CONDUCT

3.1 EXPECTATIONS:

The School Board and our community hold the highest expectations for the conduct of the students at King's Preparatory Academy. Violence in the schools shall not be tolerated and students who engage in violent criminal acts on school property, on school sponsored transportation, or during school sponsored activities will receive the most severe consequences provided for by this policy.

1. Students are expected to be in school and learning every day.

- 2. Students are expected to demonstrate appropriate and responsible behavior at all times.
- 3. Students are expected to demonstrate quality and pride in their academic work and co-curricular activities.
- 4. Students are expected to refrain from any conduct which interferes with another student's opportunity to learn.
- 5. Students are expected to contribute to a safe and orderly learning environment by respecting themselves and others, their property and school rules and regulations.

Failure to meet the above expectations, inschool misconduct, or other inappropriate behavior on the part of the students shall require interventions and, when necessary, informal or formal consequences.

3.2 STUDENTS HAVE A RESPONSIBILITY TO:

- a) make an effort to learn;
- b) come to class prepared with required books and materials;
- c) complete all assignments;
- d) ask questions, seek help and make up missed work;
- e) become familiar with the Student Code of Conduct and the school student handbook;
- f) know and observe school rules and regulations related to conduct and behavior;
- g) express themselves in a manner which does not interfere with the orderly process of education, violate school rules, or infringe on the rights of others;
- h) conduct themselves and their activities consistently with the educational objectives of the school;
- not disrupt the educational process or endanger the health, safety, or welfare of other students or staff;
- j) not carry or conceal anything prohibited by law or that would detract from the educational process;
- k) abide by the rules for co-curricular or other school-sponsored activities;
- use the grievance procedures described within this Code and School Board Policy when a serious problem arises;
- m) treat others equitably, fairly, and with mutual respect;
- n) conduct themselves and their activities in such a manner that does not sexually harass or discriminate against others; and

 o) report occurrences of discrimination or sexual harassment to the principal or Dean of Schools.

3.3 STUDENTS HAVE A RIGHT TO:

- a) an education appropriate to their needs;
- b) a positive learning climate free of disruption;
- c) a copy of clearly defined rules of student conduct and rules enforced fairly, without discrimination;
- d) express their viewpoints in appropriate ways;
- e) print and distribute publications within the guidelines provided by the school and
- f) meet together in accordance with school rules and scheduled use of facilities;
- g) participate in all eligible school programs and activities;
- be provided due process in all instances involving disciplinary actions or the exercise of their rights;
- attend a school where all students and adults are treated equitably without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender information, marital status, disability, perceived disability or record of disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act and;
- j) participate and learn in an environment free from bullying, harassment, and sexual harassment because of race, national origin and disability.

3.4 ELIGIBILITY STANDARDS FOR INTERSCHOLASTIC EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

Interscholastic athletic programs encompass all activities relating to competitive sport contests involving individual students or teams of students from one school against individual students or teams of students from another school. Such activities include, but are not limited to: tryouts, offseason conditioning, summer workouts, preseason conditioning, in-season practice and contests. Participation in interscholastic athletics by a student is a privilege, not a right. Students who participate are required to meet the standards established in Georgia law, Georgia High School Athletic Association, Inc. (FHSAA) regulations and by their respective schools. The school principal shall be responsible for determining each participant's eligibility in interscholastic extracurricular activities pursuant to the bylaws of the FHSAA, and the requirements for satisfactory conduct and academic grades according to King's Preparatory Academy Board policies.

A student who is currently suspended from interscholastic activities, or suspended or expelled from school is not eligible to participate in interscholastic activities.

A student who transfers to a school during the school year may seek to immediately join an existing team if the roster for the specific interscholastic extracurricular activity has not reached its identified maximum size and if the coach for the activity determines that the student has the requisite skill and ability to participate. The school may not declare such a student ineligible because the student did not have the opportunity to comply with qualifying requirements.

A student may not participate in a sport if the student participated in the same sport at another school during the school year unless the student meets one of the following criteria:

- a). Dependent students of active duty military personnel whose move resulted from military orders
- b). Students who have been relocated due to a foster care placement in a different school zone
- c). Students who move due to a court-ordered change in custody due to separation or divorce, or the serious illness or death of a custodial parent
- d). Authorized for good cause in or charter school policy.

Good cause is defined as, but not limited to the following:

- a). Dependent students whose move was a result of a family relocation.
- b). Dependent students whose move resulted from seeking educational opportunities not provided in previous school
- c). Dependent students whose move resulted from seeking interscholastic extracurricular opportunities not provided in previous school.

Determination of whether any other request for good cause is granted is the responsibility of the Dean of Schools.

A student's eligibility to participate in any interscholastic extracurricular activity may not be affected by any alleged recruiting violation until final disposition of the allegation.

Students who are not enrolled in a public school, but participate in interscholastic extracurricular activities for a public school are subject to the Walton County School 's Code of Student Conduct for the limited purpose of establishing and maintaining the student's eligibility to participate at the school.

3.5 DUE PROCESS FOR NON-DISABLED STUDENTS

A basic ingredient of due process of law is that one who is not satisfied with a decision may appeal it to a higher authority. Thus, the student may appeal a decision of a teacher to the principal, and the principal's decision to the Dean. Before any punishment is issued for a disciplinary referral, the school administrator MUST afford all students involved in the incident the right to be heard. The decision for the appropriate punishment will be made by the administrator only after gathering all information regarding the incident. The administrator will document that due process was conducted in writing on the referral form and in the notice to the parent/guardian (if applicable).

KPA adheres to the guidelines established by the Georgia Educational Equity Act. This act requires that each of public education operate in a way that does not discriminate against students or employees on the basis of race, national origin, sex, disability, or marital status. The KPA plan for ensuring that these requirements are met has been developed and implemented and approved by the State Department of Education.

3.6 DISCRIMINATION/SEXUAL HARASSMENT

No person shall, on the basis of gender, marital status, sexual orientation, race, religion, national origin, age or disability be denied receipt of services, participation in school activities or access to programs if qualified to receive such services. Any student who believes that he or she has been discriminated against may file a complaint in accordance with Section 2 of the KPA Policy Manual to the **KPA Dean of Schools.**

The School Board Policy manual is available from the Office of Student Services.

3.7 ATTENDANCE:

All students are expected to attend all classes each day that school is in session. Unexcused absences will result in a disciplinary consequence and will negatively affect a student's grade. Determination of whether an absence is excused or unexcused is the responsibility of the site principal or designee. Attendance excuses, including physician's statements are subject to verification and fraudulent documentation may be referred for criminal prosecution.

3.7.1 Excused:

The following absences may be excused with the proper submission of required documentation:

- a) Brief student illness/injury;
- b) Illness or medical care a principal shall require a physician's statement or other medical personnel before excusing student absences in excess of ten (10) days in any school year.
- c) Medical/dental appointments;
- d) Death of an immediate family member;
- e) Religious holiday of the specific faith of the student (principal approved);
- f) Compelled absence (e.g., judicial)
- g) Natural/major disaster that would justify absence (principal approved)
- h) School-sponsored/related activity (principal approved)
- i) Financial or other insurmountable conditions (principal approved)

3.7.2 Unexcused:

- a) Missing school bus/oversleeping
- b) Shopping/pleasure
- c) Excessive illness (without physician verification that medical condition justifies pattern)
- d) Failure to communicate the reason for absence(s)
- e) Voluntary or vacation travel that exceeds three (3) days per year without prior administrative approval

A. COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE

Students aged six (6) to eighteen (18) are subject to mandatory school attendance unless those students aged sixteen (16) to eighteen (18) have filed with the a formal statement of intent to school withdraw from which includes acknowledgements that terminating school enrollment is likely to reduce a student's earning potential and that driving privileges may be withheld or terminated. This statement must be signed by the parent guardian and student. or school representative.

Any time that a student is absent from school during school hours, a written, dated statement explaining the absence should be signed by the parent or guardian and filed at the school within (3) three days of the absence.

When a doctor's note is required following a student absence that is in excess of ten (10) days, the note must be submitted to the school within three (3) days after the student returns. The school will not accept doctor's note after the three (3) days have passed.

B. TRUANCY — ALL DAY UNEXCUSED ABSENCE

Each **unexcused absence**, or absence for which the reason is unknown, the school shall attempt to contact the parent or guardian to determine the reason for the absence.

To maximize student performance by reducing the number of students classified as habitually truant, the designated school representative will investigate cases of non-enrollment and unexcused absences from school of all children subject to compulsory school attendance. After the fifth unexcused absence during a 30 calendar day period or ten (10) unexcused in a 90 day calendar period, the Dean or designee will notify the parent or guardian in writing of the unexcused absences.

Students who have developed a pattern of nonattendance shall be referred to the school's Multitiered System of Support (MTSS) team to determine if early patterns of truancy are developing. If the MTSS team finds that a pattern of non-attendance is developing, whether the absences are excused or not, a meeting with the parent/guardian must be scheduled to identify potential remedies. If an initial meeting does not resolve the problem, the MTSS team shall implement interventions that best address the problem. MTSS Team interventions may include, but need not be limited to:

- 1. frequent communication between the teacher and the family
- 2. changes in the learning environment
- 3. mentoring
- 4. student counseling
- 5. tutoring, including peer tutoring
- 6. placement into different classes
- 7. evaluation for alternative education programs.
- 8. attendance contracts
- 9. referral to other agencies for family services, or
- 10. other interventions.

If the parent or guardian does not respond adequately to the MTSS team recommendations, the student **may** be reported to the Attendance Officer. The Attendance Officer may file a truancy petition in circuit court. Additionally, the Attendance Officer will notify the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to withhold or suspend driving privileges and/or license for student drivers.

After the fifteenth (15th) unexcused absence from school during school hours within ninety (90) calendar days, the student will be classified as a habitual truant, the truancy petition will be filed and the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles will be notified.

C. Handling Students with Lice Infestation

Students attending Kings Preparatory Academy confirmed to be infested with head lice and/or nits will be excluded from school until treatment and removal of the nits. Siblings of the student will, also, be examined for infestation and excluded if infestation is confirmed. Every effort will be made to preserve the dignity of the student. The parent will be notified as soon as possible and provided with the needed educational materials to assist them in the removal of the infestation from family members and their home environment. The parent will be encouraged to return the child/children back to school on the following school day, as long as the head lice and/or nits have been removed. The custodian will be informed of the need to clean the floors, furniture, and carpeting within the classroom/classrooms attended by lice and/or nit infested students. The student must return within three days and be cleared by a school nurse before admission. Up to three days will be excused for the student for each event, yet these absences are included within the student's ten (10) absences within any school year that may be excused without a physician's statement. If the student/students do not return to school within three days, after exclusion, contact will be made by the school to inquire about the reason for the absences and to offer support to the family. If the lice infestation continues and/or the child is not returned to school after supportive efforts are provided the school principal will determine the necessity for Child and Protective Service involvement.

3.8 CHECK-OUT OF STUDENTS DURING SEVERE WEATHER CONDITIONS

During severe weather, the safety of our students and staff is of priority importance. When schools are directed by school administration, in conjunction with the National Weather Service, to initiate the severe weather procedure drill, <u>students</u> will not be allowed to be checked-out. When the threat of dangerous weather has passed, schools will resume normal check-out conditions.

3.9 DRESS AND GROOMING:

A student's wearing apparel and grooming shall be the responsibility of the individual student and his or her parents or guardian. Dress and grooming shall be clean, healthy and safe and shall not be permitted to disrupt the teaching/learning environment.

Schools may choose to encourage students to wear appropriate shirts of the school color(s) to foster a healthy school environment and team spirit. In schools where the Board has approved uniform dress policies specific to the school, such policies will include the following dress and grooming policy.

For students, appropriate and acceptable dress on non-uniformed days includes:

- a) **Pants,** jeans, long slacks, or capris (below the knee)
- b) **Shorts, skirts and dresses** that approach the knee
- c) Shirts that cover the midriff, but no spaghetti straps, halters or backless shirts allowed
- d) **All** visible garments including layered garments, must be in accordance with the dress code
- e) **Shoes** will be worn at all times. No heels or platform shoes greater than one inch
- f) Sunglasses, hats and other sunprotective wear will be allowed to be worn outside only.

The following are <u>NOT</u> appropriate for the school environment and are <u>NOT</u> acceptable:

- a) Pants that drop below the waist
- b) Holes in garments above the knees which expose the flesh
- c) Heelies (shoes with wheels), shoes with cleats or bedroom shoes
- d) Hats in the school building
- e) Items that worn together are indicative of gang membership
- f) Garments containing a message that is obscene, religious cults, racist, or promotes illegal activities, drugs, alcohol, or tobacco products
- g) Pajamas (pants or tops)
- h) Leggings, spandex, or tights are not permitted unless worn with an outer garment that complies with dress code requirements.
- The wearing of any clothing that exposes underwear or body parts in an indecent or vulgar manner or that disrupts the orderly learning environment.

Students enrolled in special programs such as on the job vocational training, or participating in school activities which require additional standards of dress or grooming shall comply with such additional standards

330 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20201.

Any student who violates the dress code policy described herein will:

1st Offense	Verbal Warning; student sent home to change; unexcused absence.	
2nd Offense	Family counseling appointment scheduled.	Parent/guardian is Notified
3 rd or subsequent offense	Student is in-eligible to participate in any extra-curricular activity for a period not to exceed five (5) days	explanation will be sent to the

3.10 REVIEW OF STUDENT RECORDS

- 1. Parents/guardians and adult students (18 and older) have the right to inspect and review all of their student's educational records.
- 2. Parents/guardians and adult students have a right of access to these records and the right of privacy of these records, both of which they may choose to waive.
- 3. Directory or public information about a student may be restricted by a written request from the parent/guardian or adult student to the school principal.
- 4. Parents/guardians and adult students have the right to file a complaint concerning noncompliance with the law to the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act Office, HEW,

3.11 MEDICATIONS

No prescription medication may be selfadministered or administered by school personnel without a dated, authorizing permission slip signed by the parent or guardian on file with the school. Non-prescription medication or prescription medication, including asthma inhaler, Epi-pen (epinephrine), pancreatic enzymes, and diabetic supplements, may not be kept on a student's person without a physician's written order on file with the school. No student shall distribute or share any prescription or non-prescription medication with any other student. The school will not assist in administering any non-prescription medication without a written physician or parent/guardian order on file with the school.

3.12 TRESPASSING

Non-students are required to report to the school office immediately upon entering the school premises. Failure to report to the office or any act that interferes with the orderly operation of the school will be grounds for trespass prosecution Students

another s after the Exception escorting volunteer suspende the premis the day, o

<u>3.13 POS</u>

Any | provides t school pro disciplinar the study knowledgy knowledgy required. physical v take reaso school staff, and students are not at undue risk of violence or harm.

3.14 DANGEROUS ITEMS

Georgia Statute does not include the common pocket knife or BB/Pellet Guns in the definition of a "weapon"; however, the School Board of Walton County recognizes the inherent danger of such items on school grounds, and classifies the common pocket knife and BB/Pellet Guns as "dangerous items", which have no pedagogical purpose to the student during school activity hours. Therefore, possession of a dangerous item as defined will constitute a serious breach of conduct requiring administrative disciplinary action and will include suspension or expulsion.

3.15 WIRELESS COMMUNICATION

Students may carry an electronic communication device to school and school sponsored activities. Students may use such devices while being transported on vehicles. However, the use of wireless communication is not allowed during the school day or anywhere on the school campus at any time. All communication devices shall be turned completely off and kept out of sight.

- It is the students' responsibility to ensure that their wireless communication devices are turned off and out of sight. Students who violate the policy shall be deemed to have created a disruption to the instructional environment and are subject to disciplinary action including ISS, suspension, expulsion, as well as confiscation and return of the device to the student's parents or guardians after the end of the school day. Distracting behavior that creates an unsafe environment will not be tolerated.
- 2. Students shall be personally and solely responsible for the security of their wireless communication devices. KPA shall not assume responsibility for the theft, loss, or damage of a device, or unauthorized calls made on a cell phone.
- 3. Students may not have cellular telephones or other personal electronic devices in their possession during testing, including state testing, as it may invalidate test results.
- 4. Emergency calls to students will still be made through school's office.
- 5. Use of a wireless communication device in a criminal act may result in the imposition of criminal penalties.
- Students should use electronic devices for acceptable educational activities. The use of electronic devices to display or utilize apps, which show unsuitable material or materials that

cause disruptive behavior, is not appropriate. Students who misuse apps will be subject to disciplinary action.

7. The school administration reserves the right to search seized electronic devices if there is reasonable suspicion that the student was using the device in violation of school policy or law.

<u>3.16</u>

CONSEQUENCES OF VIOLATION OF WIRELESS ELECTRONIC DEVICE USAGE WHEN USAGE IS NOT FOR INSTRUCTIONAL PURPOSES

1st Offense	Verbal warning	Parent/Guardian Must Pick up Phone/Device
2nd Offense	Written warning/ODR	Parent/Guardian Must Pick up Phone/Device
3rd Offense	1 dav ISS or 3	Parent/Guardian

<u>3.17 BUS</u>

- 1. Stude
- (a) Be on waitinç
- (b) When
- road Studer front c the stu
- (c) Follow
- (d) Remai an as: seats v
- (e) Use of conduction the bus
- (f) Do not talk to or distract the driver while the bus is in operation.
- (g) Refrain from foul language or racial slurs.
- (h) Keep hands, feet, arms and head to yourself and inside windows at all times.
- (i) Do not throw waste paper or other rubbish on the floor or otherwise litter, mark, deface or damage any part of the bus.

- (j) Do not throw any objects from the bus.
- (k) Do not tamper with the emergency exit and do not use for ordinary boarding.

2. Prohibited on the school bus are:

- (a) Gum chewing, eating, drinking or use of any tobacco products.
- (b) Animals or pets.
- (c) Small objects or toys that are loose and that could get underfoot and cause passengers to trip or fall.
- (d) Any object larger than that which can be held by the student or secured so that it does not constitute a hazard.
- 3. The driver shall be in full charge of the bus and pupils at all times and his or her directions shall be obeyed.
- 4. The driver shall have the authority to assign pupils to certain seats if necessary to promote order on the bus.
- 5. The driver may issue verbal warnings, contact parents or guardians and issue written referrals for violations of these rules.
- 6. The principal or his designee shall consider the bus driver's recommendation for discipline when making a decision regarding a student referral.
- 7. The principal or his designee may suspend a student from riding the bus for serious rule violations or repeated minor violations.

STEPS OF SCHOOL BUS PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE

Step 1: First Bus Referral ** - The bus driver will have a conference with the parent/guardian and will provide documentation or will have a parent/guardian conference with the principal or assistant principal of the student's school.

Step 2: Second Bus Referral** - The school administrator shall administer shall refer student to counselor and notify parents.

Step 3: Third Bus Referral** - The school administrator shall suspend the student from the bus for a period of time.

School administrators are not required to follow the progressive discipline steps, if in their opinion, the misbehavior is severe enough to bypass progressive discipline. Acts of violence and acts that endanger the safety of others warrant the bypassing of progressive discipline and may result in criminal penalties being imposed. The school bus driver shall have authority to control student behavior at bus stops while the school bus is present at the stop.

3.18 PARKING ON SCHOOL FACILITIES

Students and parent/guardian visitors may park only in designated spaces during regular school hours. The site administrator may restrict student vehicle parking on school property by grade level or other equitable means. Illegally parked vehicles are subject to being towed at the owner's expense. As a condition to park a vehicle on any school campus or other school property, ALL students waive any right they may have to carry a firearm in a vehicle while the vehicle is on any school property, pursuant to Sections 790.115 and 790.25(5), Georgia Statutes. The purpose of this provision is to specifically waive the exemption provided in Section 790.115(2)(a) 3, Georgia Statutes.

3.19 INSTRUCTIONAL TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

1. Access

King's Preparatory Academy provides access to network resources including Internet. The use of the network and Internet must support the educational and professional activities that are consistent with the goals and policies of the School Board of Walton County. Dean or designee may examine files to determine if a user is acting in violation of any policies, including the Student Code of Conduct. Failure to comply with these policies may result in disciplinary action, legal action and / or cancellation of access.

2. Information and Uses

While we recognize the importance of technology in our society, and the importance of integrating technology into our classrooms, the School also requires students to use technology in an appropriate and responsible way. Misuse of any electronic devices will be handled with strict enforcement. At all times, users are responsible for following policies and procedures

3. Parents/guardians are encouraged to assist with the implementation of this policy.

Students have the privilege of using school/ computers, which include the internet, unless said privilege has been revoked in writing by parental/guardian opt-out form or suspension of privileges for violations of Student Code of Conduct. Access to and the use of school/ computers shall be under the direction of a school staff member and monitored as an educational activity. Although a conscious effort is made to deter access to materials that are inappropriate in the school environment through the use of internet filters, no safeguard is foolproof. Students are responsible for avoiding access to inappropriate material and reporting incidents should they occur. Disciplinary action shall consist of any combination of consequences as listed in the Student Code of Conduct Section of each individual school sites Student Handbook under Internet and Technology: Acceptable Use Policy (AUP) for the KPA Network and Internet.

3.20 INTERNET & TECHNOLOGY

Acceptable Use Policy (AUP) for King's Preparatory Academy Network and Internet

The Acceptable Use Policy is on file under form 2.18.

- 1. Uses that violate any state or federal law or municipal ordinance are unacceptable. Unacceptable uses include, but are not limited to the following:
 - a) Selling or purchasing any illegal substance;
 - b) Accessing, transmitting, or downloading child or adult pornography, obscene depictions, harmful materials, or materials that encourage others to violate the law; or
 - c) Transmitting or downloading confidential information or materials that violate Federal copyright laws.
- 2. Uses that involve the accessing, transmitting or downloading of inappropriate matters on the Internet, as determined by the KPA, local educational agency or other related authority.
 - a) Unauthorized Instant Messaging clients.
 - b) Peer-to-Peer (P2P) software used to download unauthorized music, video or content.
- 3. Uses that involve obtaining and or using unauthorized free e-mail sites as defined by the KPA Internet filtering solution.
- 4. Uses that cause harm to others or damage to their property are unacceptable.

Unacceptable uses include, but are not limited to the following:

- a) Deleting, copying, modifying, or forging other users' e-mails, files, or data;
- b) Accessing another user's e-mail without his/her permission, and as a result of that access, reading or forwarding the other user's e-mails or files without that user's permission;
- c) Damaging computer equipment, files, data or the network;
- d) Circumventing security configurations (accessing proxy sites for the purpose of bypassing authorized content filter solutions), modifying setup policies, modifying settings on machines, attaching unauthorized devices, or modifying infrastructure;
- e) Using profane, abusive, or impolite language;
- f) Disguising one's identity, impersonating other users, or sending anonymous e-mail messages;
- g) Threatening, harassing, or making defamatory or false statements about others;
- h) Accessing, transmitting, or downloading offensive, harassing, or disparaging materials;
- Accessing, transmitting or downloading computer viruses or other harmful files or programs, or in any way degrading or disrupting any computer system performance; or
- j) Accessing, transmitting or downloading large files, including "chain letters" or any type of "pyramid schemes";
- k) Using any computer to pursue "hacking," internal or external to the , or attempting to access information that is protected by privacy laws.
- I) Using the network while access privileges are suspended or revoked.
- 5. Uses that jeopardize access or lead to unauthorized access into accounts or other computer networks are unacceptable. Unacceptable uses include, but are not limited to the following:
- a) Using other user's account passwords or identifiers;
- b) Disclosing one's account password to other users or allowing other users to use one's accounts;

- c) Getting unauthorized access into other user's accounts or other computer networks; or
- d) Interfering with other user's ability to access their accounts.
- 6. Commercial uses are unacceptable. Unacceptable uses include, but are not limited to the following:
- a) Selling or buying anything over the Internet for personal financial gain; or
- b) Using the Internet for advertising, promotion, or financial gain; or
- c) Conducting for-profit business activities and engaging in non-government related fundraising or public relations activities such as solicitation for religious purposes, lobbying for political purposes, or soliciting votes.
- 7. Connecting personal network devices (wired or wireless) to the KPA Network is unacceptable.

3.22 Internet Safety

In compliance with the Children's Internet Protection Act ("CIPA"), King's Preparatory Academy will implement a technology protection measure through filtering and/or blocking software to restrict Internet sites containing access to child pornography, obscene depictions, or other materials considered to be harmful. The software will work by scanning for objectionable words or concepts, as determined by KPA. (Note: CIPA does not enumerate any actual words or concepts that should be filtered or blocked. Thus, CIPA necessarily requires that KPA determine which words or concepts are objectionable. The KPA currently blocks the categories of Adults Only, Alcohol, Chat, Drugs, Free Mail, Free Pages, Gambling, Hate/Discrimination, Illegal, Lingerie, Murder/Suicide, Nudity, Pornography, Profanity, School Cheating Information, Search Terms, Sex, Tasteless/Gross, Tobacco, Violence, and Weapons.) However, no software is foolproof, and there is still a risk an Internet user may be exposed to a site containing such materials. An account user who incidentally connects to such a site must immediately disconnect from the site and notify a teacher or supervisor. If an account user sees another user is accessing inappropriate sites, he or she should notify a teacher or supervisor immediately.

In compliance with CIPA, KPA and its representatives will implement a mechanism to monitor all minors' on-line activities, including website browsing. e-mail use. chat room participation and other forms of electronic communications. Such a mechanism may lead to discovering a user has violated or may be violating school Policy. If this is found to be the case appropriate disciplinary actions may/will be taken including notification to appropriate law enforcement agencies if necessary. Monitoring is designed to enforce the Acceptable Use Policy on the Internet as determined by KPA, local educational agency or other related authority. KPA reserves the right to monitor all online activities and to access, review, copy or store any electronic communications or files.

All users must understand and practice proper ethical use of the internet. Authorized personnel will supervise the use of computers and the internet. All students and staff must have training regarding procedures, ethics, and security involving the use of the internet and resources prior to receiving access to the system.

The use of the Internet is a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use will result in a cancellation of this privilege. Disciplinary actions will be tailored to meet specific concerns related to violations, and will be designed to assist the student or staff member in gaining the self-discipline necessary to behave appropriately on an electronic network. If the alleged violation also involves the violation of other provisions in KPA policies, the violation will be handled in accordance with the general disciplinary policies and procedures. The KPA and its employees will cooperate fully with local. state, and federal officials in any investigation concerning or relating to any illegal activities conducted through the KPA Internet system. Staff members should become familiar with this policy when their duties include supervision of students using the Internet and KPA Internet resources. When, in the course of their duties, staff members become aware of a student violation of this policy, they should correct the student and address the matter in accordance with the KPA's general disciplinary policies and procedures.

Users shall not reveal on the Internet personal information about themselves or about other persons. For example, account users should not reveal their full names, home addresses, telephone numbers, school addresses, or parents'/guardians' names on the Internet. Account users who are under the age of 18 shall not meet in person anyone they have met on the Internet without their parent's/guardians' permission. Account users will abide by all school security policies.

Privacy Policy—The System Administrators and Technology Information Officer have the authority to monitor all accounts, including e-mail and other materials transmitted through the network. Parents/guardians and community members who wish to view emails should submit a request to King's Preparatory Academy.

Storage Capacity— To ensure that account users remain within the allocated network storage, users should delete files or data that take up excessive storage space and files not related to professional activities and responsibilities.

Student Information—Student information shall be posted in accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA p47).

3.23 Penalties for Improper Use

The use of the account is a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use will result in the restriction or cancellation of the account. Inappropriate use may lead to any disciplinary and/or legal action, including but not limited to suspension, expulsion or dismissal from employment from KPA or criminal prosecution by government authorities. KPA will attempt to tailor any disciplinary action to meet the specific concerns related to each violation.

3.24 Network Etiquette (Netiquette) for E-mail

Good citizenship on the network or Internet requires "netiquette" in sending e-mail to individuals or groups. On-line rules include the following:

- Use descriptive subject heading for e-mail.
- Begin with a salutation and end with a signature and an e-mail address.
- Restate the issue or question being addressed.
- Choose words carefully to avoid misunderstandings.
- Avoid all capital letters (SHOUTING) and inflammatory messages.
- Avoid cute graphics, long quotes, cartoons and chain letters.

3.25 Cyber-Bullying—Cyber-Stalking

Cyber-bullying which is defined as Bullying or harassment of any student through the use of data or computer software that is accessed through a computer, computer system, or computer network to systematically and chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one or more students using any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of data or computer software, or written, verbal, or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee. All in accordance with "Jeffrey Johnston Stand Up for All Students Act."

Cyber-stalking which is defined as an engagement in a course of conduct to communicate, or to cause to be communicated, words, images, or language by or through the use of electronic mail or electronic communication, directed at a specific person, causing substantial emotional distress to that person and serving no legitimate purpose.

3.26 Prohibited Uses

Users should take precautions to protect access to their account(s) and must not compromise the privacy of their password by giving it to others or exposing it to public view. All security issues should be reported to school staff immediately.

Prohibited use includes, but is not limited to:

- 1. Taking, sending, forwarding or receiving pictures of a sexual nature via an electronic device is against the law and could get an employee/student into serious trouble. Students must report receiving pornographic materials to the school's administration.
- Any laser device not authorized for use as a learning tool, is strictly prohibited on school grounds or school buses and possession of such device will result in confiscation and possible disciplinary action.
- 3. Use of the Internet or network for financial gain or illegal activity of any description.
- 4. Unauthorized use of another individual's network access including use of another individual's network username and password.
- 5. Consuming large amounts of bandwidth, resulting in disruption of the network, including but not limited to:
 - a) Network/Internet games
 - b) Streaming video and audio
 - c) Non-educational teleconferencing
 - d) Downloading very large files without prior approval of technology staff
- 6. Hacking or any attempt to gain access to networks, including but not limited to:
 - a) Browsing networks to obtain IP addresses and other network information
 - b) Accessing the networks without prior authorization
 - c) Using network resources or other resources with the intent of preventing or interfering with the transmission of voice, data, pictures, or anything that can be transmitted over the network

- d) Accessing files or folders on the network without permission is prohibited
- e) Circumventing proxy servers, firewalls or other filtering software
- 7. It is expected that students using the internet will ONLY access it through the KPA network.

Note: If a communication device is used in a criminal act while the employee or student is on school property or in attendance at a school function, there is a possibility of disciplinary action by the school or criminal penalties by a court of law. (Georgia Statute)

Note: King's Preparatory Academy is not financially responsible for electronic or wireless devices that are lost or stolen on campus. KPA is not responsible for any data lost while connected to our network. The KPA maintains the right to disable any device connected to the network.

3.27 Electronic Communication

Student use of cellular phones or other wireless devices is strictly prohibited at any time once the school day begins unless specific permission is granted by a teacher or administrator or is specific to an IEP. Cellular phones or other communication devices used during the school day or on the school bus without specific permission will be confiscated. Confiscated devices will be released only to the parent/guardian at the end of the academic day that the incident occurs, or before or after school in the days following. Repeated misuse may result in loss of privileges as determined by the principal or his/her designee.

Electronic Communication includes, but is not limited to, email, blogs, podcasts, discussion boards, web sites, video conferencing, virtual classrooms, and any other online collaboration tools.

Sharing of student information, including but not limited to: home address(es), phone number(s), social security number, full name of family members or other personal information is prohibited.

Inappropriate use includes, but is not limited to:

- a) The creation and exchange of offensive, harassing, obscene, or threatening communication
- b) The creation and exchange of communication that uses impolite, abusive, or objectionable language
- c) The exchange of privileged, confidential, or sensitive information outside of the organization or outside the defined privileged group

- d) The creation and exchange of advertisements, solicitations, chain letters, SPAM and other unsolicited e-mail
- e) The creation, storage, or exchange of information in violation of copyright laws
- Reading or sending communication from another user's account, except under proper delegate arrangements
- g) Altering or copying a communication or attachment belonging to another user without the permission of the originator
- h) Using electronic communication in ways that violate KPA policies, the Student Code of Conduct, or procedures
- Activities which cause congestion of the network or otherwise interfere with the work of others;
- j) Impersonating any other person, entity, or organization or misrepresenting your affiliation with any other person, entity, or organization
- k) Representing personal views as those of the KPA

Responsibility

School staff must be notified immediately of any unauthorized use of your account or any other breach of security. Unauthorized use resulting from negligence in maintaining security will be the responsibility of the user.

Delivery

All minors will receive instruction on appropriate online behavior; including interacting with other individuals on social networking websites and in chat rooms and cyber-bullying awareness and response. Instruction may take several formats depending on age level appropriateness and content. In addition, informational resources will be available on the 's website.

Exception of Terms and Conditions—All terms and conditions as stated in this document are applicable to all users of the network. These terms and conditions reflect an agreement of the parties and shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia and the United States. All users will sign and abide by the provisions of appropriate contract (Educator, Parent/Guardian, Student, and Site).

4.0 STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES: DISCIPLINE PROCEDURES FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES (SWD)

Disciplinary procedures must be consistent with the Georgia Administrative Code. School personnel may consider any unique circumstances on a caseby-case basis when determining whether a change in placement, consistent with the requirements and procedures in this rule, is appropriate for a student with a disability (SWD) who violates a Code of Student Conduct.

Change of Placement Because of Disciplinary Removals

For the purposes of removing a SWD from the student's current educational placement as specified in the student's Individual Education Plan (IEP), a change of placement occurs when:

- 1. The removal is for more than ten (10) consecutive school days; or
- 2. The student has been subjected to a series of removals that constitutes a pattern that is a change of placement because the removals cumulate to more than ten (10) school days in a school year. (A school determines on a case-by-case basis whether a pattern of removals constitutes a change of placement. This determination is subject to review through due process and judicial proceedings.)

<u>On the date the decision is made</u> to make a removal that constitutes a change of placement for SWD because of a violation of a code of student conduct, the school must:

- 1. Notify the parent/guardian of the removal decision; and,
- 2. Provide the parent/guardian with a copy of Procedural Safeguards which outline safe guidelines for appeals.

Manifestation Determination

A manifestation determination, consistent with the following requirements, must be made within ten (10) days of any decision to change the placement of a student with a disability because of a violation of a code of student conduct. In conducting the review, the school , the parent/guardian, and relevant members of the IEP Team (as determined by the parent/guardian and the school) must review all relevant information in the student's file, including any information supplied by the parents/quardians of the student, any teacher observations of the student, and the student's current IEP. Through this process, the IEP team determines whether the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial relationship to the student's disability, or whether the conduct in question was the direct result of the school 's failure to implement the IEP. If the conduct is determined by the team to be a manifestation of the student's disability, the IEP Team must either:

- 1. Conduct a functional behavioral assessment (FBA) unless the school has conducted a FBA before the behavior that resulted in the change of placement occurred, and implement a behavioral intervention plan (BIP) for the student; or
- 2. Review an existing functional behavioral assessment and modify it, as necessary, to address the behavior.

School personnel may create an Interim Alternative Educational Setting (IAES) for not more than forty-five (45) school days without regard to whether the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student's disability under special circumstances relating to weapons, drugs, and serious bodily injury.

Students with disabilities who are suspended or expelled from school or placed in an IAES must continue to receive educational services, including homework assignments in accordance with Georgia Statutes, so as to enable the student to continue to participate in the general curriculum, although in another setting, and to progress toward meeting the goals in the student's IEP and receive, as appropriate, a functional behavioral assessment and behavioral intervention services and modifications designed to address the behavior violation so that it does not recur.

For disciplinary changes of placement, if the behavior is determined not to be a manifestation of the student's disability, the relevant disciplinary procedures applicable to students without disabilities may be applied to the student in the same manner and for the same duration in which they would be applied to students without disabilities, except that services consistent with subsection (5) of 6A-6.03312, FAC, must be provided to the student with a disability.

After a student with a disability has been removed from the current placement for ten (10) school days in the school year, if the current removal is not more than ten (10) consecutive school days and is not a change of placement, school personnel, in consultation with at least one of the student's special education teacher(s), shall determine the extent to which services are needed to enable the student to continue to participate in the general curriculum, although in another setting, and to progress toward meeting the goals in the student's IEP. A school is not required to provide services to a student with a disability during removals totaling ten (10) school days or less in that school year, if services are not provided to students without disabilities who are similarly removed.

4.1 STUDENT RECORDS IN DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES

School s shall ensure that the special education and disciplinary records of students with disabilities are transmitted, consistent with the provisions of Section 1002.22, Georgia Statutes, and Rule 6A-1.0955, FAC.

School s shall include in the records of students with disabilities a statement of any current or previous disciplinary action that has been taken against the student and transmit the statement to the same extent that the disciplinary information is included in, and transmitted with, the student records of nondisabled students.

4.2 REPORTING CRIMES COMMITTED BY SWD

A school is not prohibited from reporting a crime committed by a student with a disability to appropriate authorities or prevents state law enforcement and judicial authorities from exercising their responsibilities with regard to the application of Federal and State law to crimes committed by a student with a disability.

4.3 SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION RATES

The Georgia Department of Education will examine data, including data disaggregated by race and ethnicity, to determine if significant discrepancies are occurring in the rate of long-term suspensions and expulsions of students with disabilities.

4.4 PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS AND DUE PROCESS PROCEDURES

Each school must establish, maintain, and implement procedural safeguards that meet the requirement of 6A-6.0331, Georgia Administrative Code. Notice of Procedural Safeguards is made available at least one time a school year, and in each of the following instances:

- a) Upon initial referral or your request for an evaluation
- b) In accordance with the discipline procedures when a change in placement occurs
- c) Upon receipt of the first State complaint in a school year
- d) Upon the receipt of the first request for a due process hearing in a school year
- e) Upon your request to receive a copy

A copy of these parent/guardians rights may be obtained at Department of Exceptional Student Education, 145 Park Street, Suite 4, DeFuniak Springs, FL 32435. Procedural Safeguards may also be accessed through <u>www.walton.k12.fl.us</u> or <u>www.fldoe.org/ese/pdf/procedural.pdf</u>.

4.5 SECTION 504

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973

It is the policy of the KPA to provide a free and appropriate public education to each student/person with a disability within its jurisdiction, regardless of the nature or severity of the impairment. It is the intent of the to ensure that students who are disabled within the definition of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 are identified, evaluated and provided with equal access to educational programs. Students may be eligible under Section 504 even though they are not eligible to receive special education or related services pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). Due process rights of eligible students and their parent/guardians under Section 504 will be enforced. The school 's 504 Coordinator is responsible for ensuring compliance with Section 504 activities.

4.6 PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS, GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES, AND HEARING

Parent/guardians must be advised of their rights with respect to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. They should also receive written notice when their child is evaluated, identified, or is involved in a significant change of placement. All decisions made about a student should be based on information acquired from a variety of sources and provided by individuals knowledgeable about the student, the evaluation data, and the placement options. Parent/guardians also have the right to examine all relevant records relating to decisions involving identification, evaluation and placement. Parent/guardians have the right to file a local grievance or a due process hearing to resolve issues relating to the identification, evaluation or placement of their child. These three complaint processes are separate, distinct, and voluntary.

4.7 MEDIATION REQUEST

When parent/guardians request mediation with respect to the decisions of the School-based Intervention Team (SBIT) considering their child for Section 504 eligibility and/or the recommended accommodations, the request should be given in writing to the school principal who will attempt to resolve the issue within ten (10) school days of the receipt of the written grievance. The school principal will consult with the 504 Coordinator to help resolve complaints.

4.8 GRIEVANCE

Should an attempt to mediate prove unsuccessful, parents or guardians have the right to a -level grievance process accomplished by filing a complaint under School Board policy. Use of this procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies and use of this procedure does not extend any filing deadline related to the pursuit of other remedies. A person who wishes to avail himself/herself of this procedure may do so by filing a complaint with the School Board Equity Officer and follow the procedures as outlined in School Board policy.

4.9 DUE PROCESS HEARING

Parents or guardians also have the right to voluntarily request an impartial due process hearing at any time. Pursuing a complaint or grievance through the 's grievance procedures and participating in mediation do not constitute a prerequisite for requesting a due process hearing. Questions regarding procedural safeguards, grievance procedures, or hearing should be directed to the 's Section 504 Coordinator, (850)770-524-8277.

To obtain a due process hearing, a written request is made to the Section 504 Coordinator.

Upon receipt of the request for due process, the will contract with the Division of Administrative Hearings (DOAH) to appoint an Administrative Law Judge as a Due Process Hearing Officer. The Administrative Law Judge will schedule a prehearing conference and a subsequent hearing. Parents or guardians and the school have the right to examine all relevant educational records of the student, call and examine witnesses, provide testimony and be advised by legal counsel. Procedures governing the hearing process such as discovery, subpoenas and evidence will follow DOAH's Uniform Rules of Procedure at 28-106.201 to 28-106.216. These rules accessed at iťs website mav be at www.doah.state.fl.us. The Administrative Law Judge will render a decision, which becomes the final administrative decision. (Because Section 504 requires the decision to be impartial, it is not subject to changes by a party.) Any party aggrieved by the findings and decision in the hearing may obtain review by bringing a civil action in any state court of competent jurisdiction or in a court of the United States.

Parent/guardians may at any time also request mediation or involvement by the Office for Civil Rights, the federal agency charged with the enforcement responsibility for Section 504. Efforts should be made to assist parent/guardians to resolve disputes on a local level as a first priority. The Office for Civil Rights may be contacted at: United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, 61 Forsyth Street, SW, Suite 19T70, Atlanta, Georgia 30303, Phone (404) 974-9396, FAX (404) 974-9471.

4.10 DISCIPLINE UNDER SECTION 504

The administration of student discipline for Section 504 students is the same as that for students with disabilities who receive such services through exceptional student education programs under IDEA. If proposed, disciplinary action will cause a significant change in placement, the student is reevaluated. In a disciplinary context, this means it must be determined whether the misconduct is related to the student's disability.

Suspension for more than 10 days in a school year (cumulative, not consecutive) is as a "significant change of placement" and warrants a review of the student's placement and services. The school should convene a SBIT meeting with a group of people knowledgeable about the student and determine whether the student's inappropriate behavior was a manifestation of the student's disability. If the behavior is determined to not be related to the student's disability, typical discipline rules that apply to students who are not disabled may be implemented.

If the behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the disability or if the student's accommodation plan was insufficient to address the behavior, then change of placement should be addressed through revision of existing Accommodation Plan to include a Positive Behavior Intervention Plan (PBIP). Section 504 does not mandate functional behavior assessment; however, such an assessment would provide important information for development of PBIP.

After the PBIP is developed and implemented, further out of school suspension or other change of placements would need to be considered in light of the requirements of the PBIP. The PBIP supersedes the Code of Student Conduct in areas where the two documents may conflict (e.g. consequences for inappropriate behavior). Should a Section 504 student be appropriately suspended for more than 10 days, the school is not obligated to provide accommodations to them unless accommodations would be provided to a non-disabled student in a similar situation.

4.11 MANIFESTATION DETERMINATION

If a Section 504 student is subjected to a change of placement due to disciplinary action, a manifestation determination must be conducted. This meeting should take place before suspending a Section 504 student for a period that, when considered with prior suspensions during the school year, exceeds the tenth cumulative day.

4.12 SUBSTANCE USE/POSSESSION OFFENSES

SWD who is currently engaged in the illegal use of drugs or alcohol, is subject to any disciplinary measure pertaining to the use or possession of illegal drugs or use of alcohol as is taken for students without disabilities. No manifestation determination or due process procedures are required. However, a student with a disability who is not currently engaged in the illegal use of drugs or alcohol who commits a drug/alcohol offense, such as possession, sale, or distribution of drugs or alcohol, is afforded Section 504 and ADA protection, including the right to an evaluation of whether the behavior is related to the disability and the right to due process. For example, a student with a disability is entitled to procedural protection when illegal drugs are found in his locker if it is determined that the student is not currently using the drugs. The Office for Civil Rights (OCR) defines "current use of drugs" as "illegal use of drugs that occurred recently enough to justify a reasonable belief that a person's drug use is current or that continuing use is a real and ongoing problem". Thus if it is known that the student with the drugs in his locker has been consistently using illegal drugs but happened not to be using them that day, the student may not be protected because he could still be a current user.

SWD who formerly used drugs illegally is protected under Section 504 and ADA, if not currently engaging in illegal use of drugs. The person is protected if the individual has successfully completed a supervised rehabilitation program and is no longer engaging in drug use, the person is participating in a supervised rehabilitation program and is not engaging in such use, or the person is erroneously regarded as engaging in such use.

4.13 INTERIM ALTERNATIVE EDUCATIONAL SETTING

There is no clear guidance from OCR on determining placement in an interim alternative educational setting (IAES). However, the 45-day placement for firearms (the Jefford's Amendment) clearly applies to Section 504 students. IAES placement must be made by a duly constituted 504 team.

Definition: The IAES is a change in placement for up to 45 calendar days that may be appropriate for a student with a disability who:

a) Possesses or uses illegal drugs at school or at a school function

- b) Sells or solicits controlled substances at school or at a school function
- c) Carries or possesses a weapon to or at school, on school premises, or to or at a school function. The penalty for a Section 504 student must be commensurate with that of a non-disabled student.

4.14 NOTICE OF PARENT/GUARDIAN/STUDENT RIGHTS AFFORDED BY SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973

The following is a description of the rights granted by Federal Law to students with disabilities. The intent of the law is to keep you fully informed concerning decisions about your child and to inform you of your rights if you disagree with any of these decisions.

You have the right to:

- a) have your child take part in, and receive benefits from, public education programs without discrimination because of his/her disabling condition(s).
- b) have the school advise you of your rights under Federal Law.
- c) receive notice with respect to identification, evaluation or placement of your child.
- d) have your child receive a free appropriate public education.
- e) have your child receive services and be educated in facilities which are comparable to those provided to non-disabled students.
- f) have evaluation, education and placement decisions made, based on a variety of information sources and by persons who know the student and who are knowledgeable about the evaluation data and placement options.
- g) have transportation provided to and from an alternative placement setting (if the setting is a program not operated by the school at no greater cost to you than would be incurred if the student was placed in a program operated by the school).
- h) have your child be given an equal opportunity to participate in non-academic and extracurricular activities offered by the school.
- i) examine all relevant records relating to decisions regarding your child's identification, evaluation and placement.
- j) request mediation, file a complaint pursuant to the Georgia Administrative Procedure Act (F.S. Chapter 120), or request an impartial due process hearing related to decisions or actions regarding your child's identification, evaluation, educational program or

placement. You and your child may take part in the hearing and be represented by counsel. Hearing requests must be made in writing to the 504 Coordinator, King's Preparatory Academy, 6175 Lawrenceville, Georgia, 30084. You may also elect to contact the Office for Civil Rights at any time. These complaint resolution activities are voluntary, separate and distinct. In addition parents/guardians may also exercise any other rights available under School Board Policy.

 k) request an impartial due process hearing related to decisions or actions regarding your child's identification, evaluation, educational program or placement. Hearing requests must be made in writing to the school's 504 Coordinator, identified below. You and your child may take part in the hearing and be represented by counsel. The hearing is conducted by an Administrative Law Judge of the Division of Administrative Hearings. DOAH's Uniform Rules of Procedure, which may be accessed at it's website at www.doe.k12.ga.us, is used to conduct the hearing. The Administrative Law Judge will render a decision, which is the final administrative decision. Because Section 504 requires the decision to be impartial, it may not be subject to changes by a party. Any party aggrieved by the findings and decision in the hearing may obtain review by bringing a civil action in any State court of competent jurisdiction or in a District Court of the United States. INFRACTIONS AND CONSEQUENCES

5.0 Minor Infractions Requiring Informal Consequences

Minor infractions involving informal consequences are those which, whenever possible, should be dealt with by the classroom or supervising teacher or administrator on an individual basis without invoking formal discipline procedures. If repetition of these offenses occur, or if they are of a more severe nature, formal referral and discipline may be considered necessary. Repetition is defined as FIVE or more minor infraction referrals. Examples of in-school misconduct include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a) Tardiness (refer to the MTSS process described in the Truancy section of this document)
- b) Failure to follow instructions
- c) Failure to have required materials or equipment
- d) Cheating, plagiarism or lying
- e) Unauthorized use or loss of school property, including textbooks, or intentional damage to or defacement of school property of a minor nature
- f) Failure to report to class or leaving class without permission
- g) Committing petit or misdemeanor theft as defined in Georgia Statutes (less than \$300.00)
- h) Violation of school parking regulations
- i) Disrespect for staff
- j) Targeted behaviors in an ESE student's Individual Education Plan (IEP) or 504 student's Accommodation Plan
- k) Violation of school bus rules of conduct
- I) Teasing or horseplay which does not involve injury
- m) Use of abusive, obscene language (profanity) or libelous statements
- n) Harassment of students or staff
- Failure to follow KPA medication policy for prescription or non-prescription medication (ex. Tylenol, Motrin, etc...)
- p) Unauthorized assembly or unauthorized distribution of materials
- q) Minor disruption of a school class or activity
- r) Violation of the KPA's internet policy including students in virtual programs
- s) Refusal to do classroom work or assignments (including homework)
- t) Violation of KPA dress code
- u) Inappropriate use of wireless communication as described on page 12.

5.1 Informal Consequences

In addition to informal teacher interventions, examples of informal consequences include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a) Conference with the student/parents/guardians or direct discussion with student and/or parents/guardians, in order to resolve a problem. In cases where it is appropriate, verbal warnings should be issued to the student as the primary intervention.
- b) A written warning or reprimand to a student and parent/guardian from the teacher, or if deemed necessary, from the principal or his designee.
- c) In-class behavior management interventions to include work details, behavior management plans, and positive reenforcement for good behavior as examples.
- d) Voluntary community service (minimum of five hours) with a recognized community organization or club, church, school or social services agency. Principal must designate and approve hours and the activity prior to implementation. Students must have a community service form signed and dated by the group's representative with the number of hours and activity performed documented. This community service option MUST be completed within one (1) week of infraction. Students and their the parents/quardians assume full responsibility and liability for this option. If not completed within the specified time-frame, the administrator may assign another form of discipline.
- e) After-school detention may be imposed, when provided at the school site, for a limited period of time with a maximum of one hour a day. A period of detention may not begin without one day's notice to the student and parents/guardians and a student shall be detained only under the supervision of school personnel. Transportation is the responsibility of the parent/guardian.
- f) Lunch detention may be imposed when provided at the school site. Students will be monitored by school staff at all times in a designated area. Lunch may not be withheld from any student given lunch detention.
- g) Saturday school may be imposed where funded and provided. Transportation is the responsibility of the parent/guardian/student.

- h) School privileges may be withdrawn by the principal or his designee. These may involve co-curricular activities, school government and school social events as well as other functions as determined by the principal. This includes driving privileges for older students.
 - In-school suspension may be imposed in lieu of out-of-school suspension. Additionally, students may be required to complete daily work, additional behavior modification assignments, in-class behavior management interventions to include work details, behavior management plans, and positive reenforcement for good behavior.
 - j. Written or verbal apologies.
 - k. Replacement of property or reimbursement.
 - I. A grade of zero may be assigned by the teacher for work not submitted or in instances of cheating.
 - m. Confiscation of cell phone, tape/CD/MP3 player or similar items causing a disruption.
 Parents/guardians will be required to pick up the confiscated items from the administrative office of the school. The principal will determine appropriate consequences.
 - n. Change of clothing to comply with KPA dress code.
 - The full purchase price of a lost, destroyed, or unnecessarily damaged textbook must be collected or, after a reasonable effort to collect the required amount, the principal may suspend the student from extracurricular activities or the student may satisfy the debt through community service.

Repeated or severe misbehavior may result in a recommendation to the Dean of Schools for alternative placement.

5.3 Major Infractions Requiring Formal

<u>Consequences</u>

Suspension, expulsion and exclusion are formal consequences usually employed after parental/guardian assistance and all available school and support services have been unsuccessful in dealing with the student misconduct, or when student conduct or conditions are disruptive, dangerous or of an emergency nature. These infractions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a) Disruption or obstruction of the orderly educational process
- b) Defacement or destruction of school property
- c) Disrespect or disobedience of school officials acting pursuant to their official responsibilities, which results in a disruptive effect upon the education of other students
- d) Interference with or intimidation of school personnel by force or violence or creating a hostile environment that includes bullying/harassment or violation of bullying/harassment policy
- e) Interference with or intimidation of other students by force, violence or violation of KPA bullying/harassment policy. This includes any form of bullying.
- f) Behavior which is inappropriate or detrimental to the welfare or safety of other students including fighting on school grounds or on a school bus, at a school bus stop or while participating in a school sponsored function or activity
- g) Interference with, or disruption or obstruction of the operation of a school bus or severe infractions at a school bus stop
- Failure to correct repeated misconduct as described under infractions requiring informal consequences. Students must have accrued FIVE MINOR referrals.
- i) Participation in secret societies or gang activities
- j) Theft or larceny (\$300.00 or more)
- k) Burglary
- I) Extortion
- m) Use of a wireless communications device in a criminal act or causing a major disruption to the education process
- Possession of a self-defense spray (such as mace or pepper gas) that is not displayed in a threatening manner or used as a weapon
- o) Indecent exposure or sexual misconduct
 Maligious mischief including intention
- p) Malicious mischief including intentional damage to personal property or vandalism
- q) Robbery

- r) Trespass
- s) Leading or participating in a riot on school grounds
- t) Possession/use of tobacco or tobacco products (\$25.00 fine may also be levied)
- u) Possession of drug paraphernalia
- v) Making false representation of any item as a drug
- w) Falsely reporting an incidence such as bullying or sexual assault that disrupts the school environment
- x) Intentionally making false accusations that jeopardize the professional reputation, employment, or professional certification of a teacher or other member of the school staff
- y) Creating a hostile environment that includes harassing physical, verbal, graphic or written conduct that is sufficiently severe, pervasive or persistent as to interfere with an individual's ability to participate in or benefit from school activities. This includes all forms of sexual, racial, national origin, disability, cultural or other forms of discrimination or harassment prohibited by School Board policies.
- z) Hazing
- aa) Non-prescription medication violations as described on page 12.
- ab) Possession of a common pocket knife
- ac) Possession of cannabis shake or residue only.
- ad) Possession of alcohol.
- ae) Unauthorized use, or under the influence of alcohol, controlled substance or illegal drugs without exhibiting inappropriate, abnormal or hostile behavior that disrupts the school environment.

Students committing infractions pertaining to possession of cannabis shake or residue, alcohol or unauthorized use, or under the influence of alcohol, a controlled substance or illegal drugs may be required to complete drug or alcohol counseling and are subject to any other consequence imposed by the school administration, including, but not limited to suspension from all extracurricular activities, Saturday school, in-school suspension, out-of-school suspension, or a recommendation to the Dean of Schools for expulsion or alternative placement.

Repeated or severe misbehavior of any item addressed in Major Infractions may result in a recommendation to the Dean of Schools for alternative placement or a recommendation for expulsion.

5.4 OFF CAMPUS INCIDENTS

In compliance with State Board Rule 6A-1.0956, when a student is formally charged with a felony by a proper prosecuting attorney for an incident which allegedly occurred on property other than public school property, but which incident is shown to have an adverse impact on the educational program, discipline, or welfare in the school in which the student is enrolled, the principal shall, in accordance with Section 1006.09(2), Georgia Statutes, conduct an administrative hearing for the purpose of determining whether or not the student should be suspended pending disposition of the charge. The following procedures shall be followed by the conducting principal in instituting and the administrative hearing; provided, however, that a school board may, upon written approval of the Commissioner, utilize its own hearing policy in lieu of this rule.

- 1. Upon receiving proper notice that a student has been formally charged with a felony, the principal shall immediately notify the parent or guardian of the student, in writing, of the specific charges against the student and of the right to a hearing prior to disciplinary action being instituted under the provisions of Section 1006.09(2), Georgia Statutes.
- Such notice shall stipulate a date for hearing which shall be not less than two (2) school days nor more than five (5) school days from postmarked date, or delivery, of the notice and shall also advise the parent/guardian of the conditions under which a waiver of suspension may be granted, as prescribed in subsections (2) and (3) of Section 1006.09, Georgia Statutes. Pending such hearing, the student may be temporarily suspended by the principal.
- 3. The hearing shall be conducted by the principal, or designee, and may be attended by the student, the parent or guardian, the student's representative or counsel, and any witnesses requested by the student, the parent or guardian, or the principal.
- 4. The student may speak in his or her own defense, may present any evidence indicating his or her eligibility for a waiver of disciplinary action, and may be questioned on his or her testimony. However, the student shall not be threatened with punishment or later punished for refusal to testify.
- 5. In conducting the hearing, the principal or designee shall not be bound by rules of evidence or any other courtroom procedure and no transcript of testimony shall be required.

- 6. Following the hearing, the principal, within five (5) school days shall provide the student and parent/guardian with a decision, in writing, as to whether or not suspension will be made. In arriving at this decision, the principal shall consider conditions prescribed the bv subsections (2) and (3) of Section 1006.09, Georgia Statutes, under which a waiver of suspension may be granted, and may grant such a waiver when he or she determines such action to be in the best interests of the school and the student. Provided, however, that any suspension pending adjudication of guilt shall be made only upon a finding, based upon conclusive evidence, the felony charge has been formally filed against the student by a proper prosecuting attorney. The principal shall have authority to modify the decision to either grant or deny a waiver, at any time prior to adjudication of the student's guilt by a court, provided that any such modification adverse to the student shall be made only following a hearing conducted in accordance with this rule.
- 7. The Dean may assign or reassign a student to any school or program in the school if in the judgment of the Dean, such assignment is in the best interest of the student, another student, staff, or the school in general.
- No student shall be eligible to participate in any extra-curricular activity if the student is being supervised by either the Georgia Department of Juvenile Justice or the Georgia Department of Corrections. This supervision includes, but is not limited to, pre-trial and post-trial (or plea) supervision.

5.5 SUSPENSION & EXPULSION

Suspended or expelled students cannot be on School grounds anytime during the school day or when a school activity is being held.

<u>Suspension</u>

Suspension from the regular program of the KPA is defined as removal of a student from all classes or instruction on public school grounds and all other school sponsored activities for no more than (10) school days, unless extended by the Dean of Schools until the next regular or special meeting of the KPA or by the KPA to a date certain. This includes suspension from school, from riding a school bus, and/or from participating in any school function. The student receiving an out-of-school suspension shall be remanded to the custody of the student's parent or guardian with special homework assignments for the student to complete if requested by the parent/guardian. Parent/guardian attendance with a child may be substituted for a portion or all of a suspension when offered as an alternative and approved by the principal or his/her designee. The parent/guardian must agree to attend school, shadowing their child, throughout the entire school day.

Conditions of Suspension

- When a child is suspended from riding a school bus due to misconduct, his absence from school is unexcused. The parent or guardian is expected to provide transportation during the time the student is excluded from the bus. For a student with disabilities with transportation listed as a related service on the IEP or accommodation plan, an alternative mode of transportation must be provided by the school if cumulative suspensions have exceeded ten (10) days.
- 2. Absence due to an out-of-school suspension shall be considered an excused absence, and will be coded with an "O". A student may make up any work missed and can receive a passing grade of no more than 70%. Assignments will be provided upon parent/guardian request.
- 3. For suspensions of 10 days or less, the decision of the principal shall be final if all due process procedures of this Code are followed.

Expulsions

Expulsion is a denial of access to the KPA. Violent crimes on school grounds, school transportation, or at school functions and serious and/or repeated misconduct may be cause for expulsion. Expulsion may be affected and rescinded only by the School Board. The length of the expulsion shall not exceed the end of that school year during which it was effected and one additional year of attendance. The School Board may honor all expulsions from other Georgia public or charter schools and may, upon the Dean's recommendation to the school administrator, honor suspensions and expulsions from a non-public and out-of-state schools.

5.6 BULLYING, HARASSMENT, OR TEEN DATING VIOLENCE

It is the policy of KPA that all of its students and school employees have an educational setting that is safe, secure, and free from harassment and bullying of any kind. The KPA will not tolerate bullying and harassment of any type. Conduct that constitutes bullying and harassment, as defined herein, is prohibited. **5.6.1 Bulling** is defined as systematically and chronically inflicting physical hurt or psychological distress on one or more students or employees that is severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school performance or participation.

May involve but is not limited to:

-Unwanted teasing	-Social Exclusion	
-Threat	-Intimidation	
-Stalking	-Theft	
-Physical violence	-Public humiliation	
-Cyberbullying	-Destruction of property	
-Sexual, religious, or racial harassment		

Bullying may also occur:

- a) Through the use of data or computer software that is accessed through a computer, computer system, or computer network within the scope of a public K-12 educational institution; or
- b) Through the use of data or computer software that is accessed at a non-schoolrelated location, activity, function, or program or through the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by a school or school, if the bullying substantially interferes with or limits the victim's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or opportunities offered by a school or substantially disrupts the education process or orderly operation of a school. This paragraph does not require a school to staff or monitor any nonschool-related activity, function, or program.
- c) "Within the scope of a public K-12 educational institution" means, regardless of ownership, any computer, computer system, or computer network that is physically located on school property or at a schoolrelated or school-sponsored program or activity.
- d) "Cyberbullying" means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, which includes, but is not limited to, any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic system, photoelectronic system, or photo-optical system, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, Internet communications, instant messages, or facsimile communications. Cyberbullying includes the creation of a webpage or weblog in which

the creator assumes the identity of another person, or the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or messages, if the creation or impersonation creates any of the conditions enumerated in the definition of bullying. Cyberbullying also includes the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons, if the distribution or posting creates any of the conditions enumerated in the definition of bullying.

5.6.2 Harassment means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of data or computer software, or written, verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that:

- a) Places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his or her person or damage to his or her property;
- b) Has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, opportunities, or benefits; or
- c) Has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school including any course of conduct directed at a specific person that causes substantial emotional distress in such a person and serves no legitimate purpose; or
- d) Cyberstalking as defined in s.784.048(d), FS, means to engage in a course of conduct to communicate, or to cause to be communicated, words, images, or language by or through the use of electronic mail or electronic communication, directed at a specific person, causing substantial emotional distress to that person and serving no legitimate purpose.

Bullying and harassment also encompass:

- Retaliation against a student or school employee by another student or school employee for asserting or alleging an act of bullying or harassment. Reporting an act of bullying or harassment that is not made in good faith is considered retaliation.
- 2. Perpetuation of conduct listed in the definition of bullying or harassment by an individual or group with intent to demean, dehumanize, embarrass, or cause emotional or physical harm to a student or school employee by:
 - a) Incitement or coercion

- Accessing or knowingly and willingly causing or providing access to data or computer software through a computer, computer system, or computer network within the scope of the school system
- c) Acting in a manner that has an effect substantially similar to the effect of bullying or harassment.

5.6.3 Teen Dating Violence

It is the policy of the KPA that all of its students have an educational setting that is safe, secure, and free from dating violence or abuse of any kind.

Teen dating violence is a pattern of emotional, verbal, sexual, or physical abuse used by one person in a current or past dating relationship to exert power and control over another when one or both of the partners is a teenager. Abuse may include insults, coercion, social sabotage, sexual harassment, stalking, threat and/or acts of physical or sexual abuse. The abusive partner uses this pattern of violent and coercive behavior to gain power and maintain control over the dating partner. This may also include abuse, harassment, and stalking via electronic devices such as cell phones and computers, and harassment through a third party, and may be physical, mental, or both.

Consistent with the intent and requirements of Section 1006.148, Georgia Statutes, the KPA upholds that dating violence by any student is prohibited:

- on school property;
- during any school-related or schoolsponsored program or activity; or
- during school-sponsored transportation.

To report or make a complaint of bullying, harassment, or teen dating violence:

A written (see form in back of Code) report will be made to the school's principal or school designee. Nothing prevents a report from being made directly to the 's designee, or safety officer.

Upon receipt of a report or complaint:

- 1. The school's designee shall notify the parent/guardian of the alleged victim and perpetrator that an investigation has been initiated.
- The school principal or his/her designee will conduct an investigation documenting interviews with the victim, alleged perpetrator, and witnesses. Interviews will be conducted privately, separately, and shall be confidential. This investigation will be conducted within ten (10) days of receipt of the complaint.

Parents/guardians of both victim and alleged perpetrator will be notified.

- 3. The principal shall complete a written, final report including all facts and shall include whether the actions constitute a violation of this policy. Parents/guardians of both victim and alleged perpetrator will be notified of this finding.
- 4. The principal shall recommend to the parents/guardians' remedial steps necessary to stop the bullying/harassing behavior.
- 5. If resolution is not achieved through school based intervention, the safety officer will conduct an independent investigation. A continued pattern of bullying/harassing behavior will be considered a major infraction of KPA policy.
- 6. The school may refer victims and perpetrators to counseling through the guidance department and may require parent/legal guardian involvement.

The KPA will take action against any student or staff member who retaliates against any person who reports an incident of alleged bullying or harassment or violence, or any person who testifies, assists or participates in a proceeding, investigation or hearing relating to such bullying/harassment or violence. Submission of a good faith report of bullying or harassment of any kind will not affect employment, future employment, grades, learning or working environment or work assignments. All students and employees shall be allowed to learn and work in an environment free from bullying or harassment.

Any person who witnesses bullying, harassment, or teen dating violence is required to report it to the proper authorities. Violation of the KPA's bullying, harassment, or teen dating violence policy may result in an in-school suspension, out-of-school suspension, expulsion or other disciplinary or criminal penalties being imposed. Any student who believes he or she has been placed in a hostile environment or harassed by another student or any other person in the school, on a school bus, or while participating in a school activity may file a complaint utilizing the procedure above to the school principal.

5.7 HAZING

No student, employee or volunteer of the KPA shall plan, direct or encourage hazing of any type.

Hazing is defined as: pressuring, coercing or forcing a student into violating state or federal law; consuming any food, liquor, drug or other substance; or participating in physical activity that could adversely affect the health or safety of the student. Hazing also includes any brutality of a physical nature such as whipping, beating, branding or exposure to the elements. An act is still considered hazing even if consent of the victim had been obtained, the activity was not part of an official organizational event or sanctioned or the act was not done as a condition of membership to an organization.

In addition to school-level punishment, Georgia Statutes recognize hazing as a 1st degree misdemeanor if the person knew or should have know it would create a potential risk of physical injury or death and a 3rd degree felony if the person knew or should have known the act would result in serious bodily injury or death.

5.8 TOBACCO PRODUCTS

Tobacco products are defined to include any lighted or unlighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, cigarillo and any other smoking product, and any smokeless or spitless tobacco known as dip, chew, snuff or electronic cigarette in any form. Students are prohibited from possessing, using, distributing or selling tobacco products anywhere on school grounds, on school buses or while participating in school activities. Civil citations may be issued and are punishable by Georgia law (s.386.212FS). This may include a fine and/or community service. Community agencies or local health department may offer smoking cessation classes which may be helpful to the student.

5.9 VANDALISM

A student and his or her parent or guardian shall be financially responsible for willful or malicious damage to KPA property caused by the student. The principal may impose disciplinary consequences in addition to a requirement for restitution.

6.0 OFFENSES REQUIRING SEVERE CONSEQUENCES

Students who have been found to have committed the following offenses on school grounds, a school bus, school-sponsored transportation or at a school bus stop, or during a school sponsored function or activity **shall be recommended for expulsion by the school administrator**, receive the most severe consequences provided for by School Board Policy and be referred to the appropriate law enforcement agency:

- (a) Homicide (murder or manslaughter).
- (b) Sexual battery.
- (c) Armed robbery.
- (d) Aggravated battery.
- (e) Battery or aggravated battery on a teacher or other school personnel.
- (f) Kidnapping or abduction.
- (g) Arson
- (h) Distribution, sell, or intent to sell drugs, including any alcoholic beverage or any substance controlled under Chapter 893, Georgia Statutes while the student is upon school property or in attendance at a school function on or off campus. This infraction may also result in criminal penalties being imposed. Self-referral or court-ordered referral to a statelicensed drug abuse program, and successful completion thereof; or voluntarily disclosing unlawful possession of controlled substances prior to arrest; or divulging information leading to the arrest and conviction of the person(s) who supplied the controlled substance may constitute sufficient grounds for a suspension of the expulsion for illegal possession or use only. Students who are accused of drug/alcohol use have the option to have a drug or alcohol test performed within 12 hours of the infraction at a State of Georgia certified laboratory. The parent/guardian must request the Drug/Alcohol Screening form from the Dean's office and indicate their intent to challenge the referral for expulsion. The student will remain under suspension until the results are sent to the Office. The parent/guardian/student will assume all costs associated with the screening and "chain of custody" (verification) process.
- (i) Possession of illegal drugs or controlled substances listed under Chapter 893, Georgia Statutes.
- (j) Being under the influence of controlled substances or illegal drugs or any other substance (ex: chemical fumes, glue, or adhesives intentionally used as a drug to alter mental or physical state) which causes the student to behave inappropriately, abnormally or

hostile. An exception would include proof of a prescribed medication which would cause similar symptoms when taken by the student. Such evidence of proof would include a prescription medication bottle bearing the student's name or a doctor's statement verifying the prescription for the student on the physician's letterhead.

- (k) Any student who is determined to have brought a firearm or weapon including a box cutter or razorblade, (as defined in Georgia Statutes) to school, on school grounds, to any school function or activity, on a school bus, or at a school bus stop commits a felony of the third degree and shall be expelled for not less than one (1) full year, and referred to the Criminal Justice or Juvenile Justice System. The use of any object which is displayed in an intimidating or threatening manner which could cause harm or injury to others will be considered a weapon.
- (I) Any student who is determined to have made a threat or false report as defined by FS.790.162 and FS. 790.163 involving school or school personnel's property, school transportation, or a school sponsored activity shall be expelled, with or without continuing education services, from the student's regular school for a period of not less than one (1) full calendar year and referred for criminal prosecution. The School Board may recommend enrollment of the student to a disciplinary program or alternative educational setting for the purpose of continuing educational services during the period of expulsion. This may include voluntary home education by the parent or quardian.

The Dean may consider the one year expulsion requirement of section (k) and (l) on a case-bycase basis and request the school board to modify the requirement by assigning the student to a disciplinary program or second chance school if the request for modification is in writing and it is determined to be in the best interest of the student and the school system. If a student committing any of the offenses in this subsection is a student with a disability, the school board shall comply with applicable State Board of Education rules.

6.1 FIREARM SIMULATION

Simulating a firearm or weapon while playing or wearing clothing that depicts a firearm or weapon or expresses an opinion regarding the Second Amendment is not grounds for disciplinary action or referral to a law enforcement agency. Simulating a firearm includes, but is not limited to:

- a) Brandishing a partially-consumed pastry or other food item
- b) Possessing a toy firearm or weapon less than two inches in length
- c) Possessing a toy firearm or weapon made of plastic snap-together building blocks
- d) Using a finger or hand to simulate a firearm or weapon
- e) Vocalizing sounds of an imaginary firearm or weapon
- f) Drawing or possessing an image of a firearm or weapon
- g) Using a pencil, pen or other utensil to simulate a firearm or weapon

Students may be subject to disciplinary action if any of the above substantially disrupts student learning; causes bodily harm or places another person in reasonable fear of bodily harm. The severity of the consequences must be proportionate to the severity of the infraction.

Parents must be notified if a student is disciplined for such conduct.

6.2 VICTIMIZING

King's Preparatory School shall take all steps necessary to protect the victim of any violent crime from any further victimization. When a student, staff or volunteer has been the victim of a violent crime perpetrated by a student who attends the same school, the principal shall make full and effective use of his or her statutory authority to take steps to protect the victim of any such crime. These steps shall include, but not be limited to, in-school suspension of the offender or rescheduling of classes. lunch or other school activities of the victim and the offender, so as not to coincide. A reassignment request for the offender or the victim will also be considered. ESE students shall require an IEP review to determine an appropriate placement and, if applicable, continuation of services required by law.

Any student who is attending King's Preparatory Academy, any campus, and in felony violation of:

- 1. Chapter 762, relating to homicide;
- Chapter 784, relating to assault, battery, and culpable negligence;
- Chapter 787, relating to kidnapping, false imprisonment, luring or enticing a child, and custody offenses;
- 4. Chapter 794, relating to sexual battery;
- Chapter 800, relating to lewdness and indecent exposure;

- 6. Chapter 827, relating to abuse of children
- 7. Section 812.13, relating to robbery;
- 8. Section 812.131, relating to robbery by sudden snatching;
- 9. Section 812.133, relating to carjacking;
- 10. Section 812.135, relating to home-invasion robbery

and the offender was attending a school attended by the victim or a sibling of the victim of the offense, the Department of Juvenile Justice shall notify the appropriate KPA. Schools must take all steps necessary to protect the victim of any violent crime from any further victimization whenever and wherever students are under the jurisdiction of the school. When a student has been the victim a violent crime perpetrated by another student who attends the same school, the principal shall assume responsibility for reporting and taking certain actions pursuant to 1006.13(5) of the Georgia Statute. Any offender described above shall not attend any school attended by the victim or sibling of the victim of the offense or ride on a school bus on which the victim or sibling is riding, except as provided pursuant to a written disposition order under S.<mark>985</mark>.23(1)(d).

6.3 Safe Harbor Provision

A student may approach a school official and voluntarily surrender an object, the possession of which is prohibited by the Code of Student Conduct. Unless an investigation by school officials regarding the possession of this particular object has already commenced, if a student approaches a school official and voluntarily surrenders such an object, then the student will not be subject to disciplinary action. The student's parent/guardian will make arrangements to pick up the object from the school, if applicable. If a student discovers an illegal item such as drugs, a weapon, or other contraband on school property, including on a school bus, the student may approach a school official and report the discovery. A student shall not be in violation o the Code of Student Conduct solely by making such a report. School officials shall adhere to policies and procedures concerning further investigation of the report.

FORMS

* Forms to be completed and returned to school by parents and students for the 2018-2019 school year.

- Student Receipt and Understanding of the Code of Conduct *
- Parent/Guardian Receipt and Understanding of Code of Conduct *
- Student/Staff Acceptable Use Policy Agreement *
- Parent or Guardian Acceptable Use Policy Agreement*
- Student Technology Opt-out Form
- FERPA Notice *
- Possession of Wireless Communication Devices *
- Bullying Complaint Form

Campus:	
_	
Teacher:	

NOTICE OF RECEIPT and UNDERSTANDING OF THE KING'S PREPARATORY ACADEMY STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

I have received and read the KPA's Student Code of Conduct and Internet Policies. My signature indicates my understanding of these policies.

Student Name (Please Print)

Student Signature

Date

This form is to be kept at the school or office and kept on file by the school site administrator. It is required for all students that will be using a computer network and/or Internet access. It is to be renewed each year prior to any computer network or Internet usage.

PARENTAL/GUARDIAN NOTICE OF RECEIPT and UNDERSTANDING OF THE

KING'S PREPARATORY ACADEMY STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT INCLUDING KPA INTERNET POLICIES

I have received and read the KPA's Student Code of Conduct and Internet Policies. My signature indicates my understanding of these policies.

Parent/Legal Guardian Signature

Date

Parent/Legal Guardian Printed Name

Student Printed Name

This form is to be kept at the school or office and kept on file by the school site administrator. It is required for all students that will be using a computer network and/or Internet access. It is to be renewed each year prior to any computer network or Internet usage.

Staff/Student Agreement For use of KING'S PREPARATORY ACADEMY Network and Internet

All employees or students must read and sign below.

I have read, understand, and agree to abide by the provisions of the attached Acceptable Use Policy of the school.

I understand and agree in the event a third party makes a claim against the school because of my use of the computer network or the Internet provided by the school, the school reserves its right to respond to such a claim as it sees fit and to hold all offending parties, including myself, responsible.

I release the school, its affiliates, and its employees from any claims or damages of any nature arising from my access or use of the computer network or the Internet provided by the school. I also agree not to hold the school responsible for materials improperly acquired on the system or for violations of copyright restrictions, users' mistakes or negligence, or any costs incurred by users.

This agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the United States and the State of Georgia.

Name (Please Print)	Staff or Student School Site/ Facility	
Student Grade	Home Room Teacher	
Signature	Date	

This form is to be kept at the school or office and kept on file by the school site administrator. It is required for all employees that will be using a computer network and/or Internet access. It is to be renewed each year prior to any computer network or Internet usage.

www.walton.k12.fl.us/technology/policies

Parent or Guardian Agreement For use of KING'S PREPARATORY ACADEMY Network and Internet

All parents or legal guardians of students under 18 must read and sign below

As the parent or legal guardian of the student named below, I have read, understand, and agree my child or dependent must comply with the provisions of the attached Acceptable Use Policy of the Walton County School I give full permission to the to give my child or dependent access to a Walton County School Network Account and to the _system.

I accept full responsibility for the supervision of my child or dependent's use of his/her Walton County School Network_Account and the Internet at home or while not in a school setting. I understand and agree in the event a third party makes a claim against the as a result of my child or dependent's use of the computer network or the Internet provided by the , the reserves its right to respond to such a claim as it sees fit and to hold all offending parties, including my child or dependent, responsible.

I release the , its affiliates, and its employees from any claims or damages of any nature arising from my child or dependent's access or use of the computer network or the Internet provided by the . I also agree not to hold the responsible for materials improperly acquired on the system, or for violations of copyright restrictions, users' mistakes or negligence, or any costs incurred by users.

This agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the United States and the State of Georgia.

School	Date:
Name of Student	
Parent/Legal Guardian Name (Please Print)	

This form is to be kept at the school or office and kept on file by the school site administrator. It is required for all employees that will be using a computer network and/or Internet access. It is to be

renewed each year prior to any computer network or Internet usage.

www.walton.k12.fl.us/technology/policies

Parent/Legal Guardian Signature

Student Technology Opt-Out Form

Last Name (Please Print)	First Name	MI	School Student ID #	Grade	
Date of Birth		Ca	mpus		

Students will have the -privileges listed below unless this Technology Opt-Out Form is submitted by the Parent / Guardian.

Please place a check in the blank provided if you do **NOT** want your child to participate and sign at the end of this document.

KPA provides Internet filters and takes great care to block access to inappropriate material. Although a conscious effort is made to deter access to materials that are inappropriate in the school environment, no safeguard is foolproof. Students are responsible for avoiding access to inappropriate material.

By checking below, your child will <u>not</u> be able to access important and valuable educational resources such as the school / online library card catalog, instructional software (*i.e.*, Accelerated Reader, Read 180, BrainPOP, Rosetta Stone, *etc.*) and resources for research and printing.

_____ My child does <u>not</u> have my permission to access the internet on school provided computers or any other electronic device. I understand my child will be required to participate in local and state online assessments.

This does not include online assessments required by the state of Georgia.

The Technology Opt-Out Form will become a part of the student's cumulative record.

arcint	Ouarai	annan	

Parent / Guardian Name

(Please Print)	Last Name	First Name	MI	
Parent/Guardian				
Signature(s)		Date:		
Form Must be Returned to School				

E FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS AND PRIVACY ACT (FERPA)

PARENT/GUARDIAN NOTICE

Dear Parent/Guardian:

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), a Federal law, requires that the King's Preparatory Academy School, with certain exceptions, obtain your written consent prior to the disclosure of personally identifiable information from your child's education records. However, the School may disclose appropriately designated directory information without written consent unless you have advised the school to the contrary in accordance with procedures. The primary purpose of directory information is to allow the School to include this type of information from your child's education records in certain school publications. Examples include:

- A playbill showing your student's role in a drama production
- The yearbook
- Honor roll or recognition lists
- Graduation programs
- · Sports activity sheets, such as for wrestling, showing weight and height of team members

Directory information, which is information that is generally not considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if released, can be disclosed to outside organizations without a parent's/guardian's prior written consent. Outside organizations include but are not limited to companies that manufacture class rings or publish yearbooks or with an educational purpose. In addition, two federal laws require local educational agencies (LEA's) receiving assistance under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (ESEA) to provide military recruiters, on request, with three directory information categories – names, addresses and telephone listings-unless parents/guardians have advised the LEA that they do not want their student's information disclosed without their prior written consent.

KPA has designated the following information as directory information:

Student's name, address, email and telephone listing Date and place of birth Dates of attendance Participation in officially recognized activities and sports Most recent education agency or institution attended Digital Imaging Photograph Major field of study Grade Level Weight and height of members of athletic teams Degrees, honors, and awards received

YOU MUST NOTIFY YOUR CHILD'S SCHOOL IN WRITING PRIOR TO <u>AUGUST</u> 31, USING THE FORM BELOW IF YOU DO NOT WANT THE SCHOOL TO DISCLOSE DIRECTORY INFORMATION FROM YOU CHILD'S EDUCATION RECORDS WITHOUT YOUR PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

Please complete, sign and return the bottom portion of this form if you are denying permission

FERPA AGREEMENT

PERMISSION DENIED

Campus:	
Teacher:	
Grade:	

I deny permission for the KPA to release directory information on my child without my written consent, unless the release is required by law.

I realize that with this denial, my child's directory information and/or photos will not appear in school media such as: yearbooks, school websites, school newspapers, class pictures, or other school communication tools.

Name of Student ____

SIGNATURE OF PARENT/GUARDIAN

DATE

Possession of Wireless Communication Devices

School:	
Teacher:	

STUDENT/PARENT/GUARDIAN CONTRACT

Should a student not have this signed contract on file, they will lose their opportunity for a warning and have their cell phone privilege revoked for the remainder of the school year.

Maintaining the integrity of the learning environment is the top priority.

Students will be permitted to have cell phones in their possession throughout the school day and while being transported by school bus; however, during school hours, phones must be off and not visible.

Should a student be observed using a cell phone, or a cell phone rings during the school day, disciplinary action will include, but is not limited to, an office discipline referral and confiscation of the phone. Additionally, a student's abuse of this policy will result in the student losing the privilege to be able to carry a cell phone permanently, or for a period of time as determined by an administrator.

- Student cell phones ringing in class will result in confiscation of the phone and disciplinary action.
- Should confiscation occur the phone will only be returned when retrieved by a parent or guardian.

During times of testing and other student evaluations, teachers may request that students remove their cell phone from their possession, either by returning to a locker or placing under a desk, reducing the possibility of compromised test security.

Fire drills, assemblies, or other school evacuations are considered cell phone blackouts. During such contingencies, there will be absolute ZERO TOLERANCE on cell phone use.

STUDENT CONTRACT

(student's name) understand that possession of a wireless Ι, communication device including a cellular telephone on school campus is a privilege, and that it may be revoked at any time by the administration for violating this school policy regarding such possession, which I have been provided with and read. Furthermore, I understand that the school and its employees are in no way responsible for any theft or damage of any communication device while on school grounds. The school is not obligated to investigate the loss or damage of any phone.

Student's Signature

Date

PARENT	/GUARI	DIAN C	ONTR	<u>ACT</u>

(parent's/guardian's name) understand this contract regarding my student's possession of a wireless communication device including a cellular telephone on campus. Furthermore, I understand that the school and its employees are in no way responsible for any theft or damage of my child's wireless communication device while on school grounds. The school is not obligated to investigate the loss or damage of a cell phone. Should my student's cell phone be confiscated, I understand that it will only be returned when I come to the school to retrieve it.

Parent/Guardian Signature

Date

EPORTS OR COMPLAINTS OF BULLYING, SEXUAL HARASSMENT, TEEN DATING VIOLENCE, OR HARASSMENT BECAUSE OF RACE, NATIONAL ORIGIN, AND DISABILITY

Complainant	Do you wish to remain
Home Address	anonymous in
Work Address	making this report?
Home Phone Work Phone	-
Date(s) of alleged incident(s)	
Did the incidents involve bullying sexual harassment racial harassment	
harassment because of national origin harassment because of disability	
Teen dating violence (check all that apply)	
Name of person(s) you believe harassed or bullied you or another person:	
If the alleged harassment/bullying was toward another person, identify that other person	
Describe the relationship between the parties involved	
Characteristics/Ages of parties involved	
Describe the incident as clearly as possible, including such things as what force, if any, was us statements, number of incidents, how often has this occurred, (i.e. threats, requests, demands physical contact was involved. Attach additional pages as necessary.	
When and where did the incident occur?	
List any witnesses who were present:	
The complaint is based upon my honest belief that	has this complaint is
(complainant's signature)	(date)
	()

sexual orientation, disability, political or religious beliefs, genetic information or any other basis prohibited by law in its educational programs, services or activities or in its hiring or employment practices. Retaliation against an employee for engaging in a protected activity is prohibited

King's Preparatory Academy (main) Curriculum & Instruction

Curriculum & Instruction Equity Officer Exceptional Student Education Facilities Human Resources Student Services Counseling Registrar Testing

770-JAGUARS

770-524-8277, ext.	150
770-524-8277, ext.	160
770-524-8277, ext.	190
770-524-8277, ext.	180
770-524-8277, ext.	130
770-524-8277, ext.	110
770-524-8277, ext.	170
770-524-8277, ext.	120
770-524-8277, ext. 140	

Information Contact Numbers

Animal Welfare	770.339.3200
Battered Women's Shelter	770.963.9799
Child Abuse Reporting Line	678.518.5500
Gwinnett County Non-Emergency	770.513.5700
Domestic Violence Helpline	800.334.2836
Drug Abuse Helpline	800.662.4357
Mental Health Helpline	770.662.4357
Poison Control Center	404.616.9000
Rape Crisis Center	770.476.7407
Suicide Prevention Hotline	800.784.2433
Gwinnett Fire and Emergency Services Department	678.518.4800

STUDENT
I,, have read and understand the Policy
and will abide by the terms and conditions as stated. I understand that any violation of the Policy
guidelines will result in disciplinary measures, which will include restrictions on or removal of my
Internet use.

Student's Signature